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; / * _ HEMARKABLE GROWTH AND SUGCESS OF THE J.R. WATKINS COMPANY
N /.

DUE TO GOOD PRODUCTS, ATTRACTIVE PACKAGING AND SOUND MERCHANDISING

Like a story from the pen of Henty or Aiger is thé way the history
of The J,R. Watkins Company reads., In all of the books written by
the two mentioned, the hero, usually a poor lad, makes his own way in
the world and rises to success and affluence in spite of difficulties on
every side. ©So it was with J.R. Watkins, who had the faith and courage
to staert a business, in what was then a very sparsely settled and wild
region, only to see it develop and grow into what is now a ten million
dollar concern with factories and branches all over the United States
and Canada,

Wat;kins was a comparative youngster when he left his home in Ohio
and moved to Minnesota. He was out on his own but had the raw courage
and zeal of the pioneers to drive him on to success. From an humble
start, selling one product, which he himself made in his own home, the
business grew rapidly. Now there are over 9,000 dealers selling Watkins//
products directly to the home--a method originated by J.R. Watkins. Far
into Canada's frozen north country and in Alaska, Watkiﬁs.dealers g0,
traveling by dog sled when the Arctic blasts of winter close the highways
to more modern means of travel, to carry Watkins products to the dooys of
customers, who have found them to be high in guality and reasonable in
price.

Even in lands across the sea, Watkins products are sold., Australia

e ——

knews them, for a fine selling organization is operating there. Even

a————

the Holy Land has a gqualified Watkins dealer. To experts on cooking and
baking in Europe, the name is a familiar one for Watkins Vanilla Extract
and Watkins Spices have been winners of highest awards in European

Expositions and Shows,
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| All of this remarkable growth is due to the vision, square dealing
and integrity of J.R. Watkins.‘ When he first started making the now
femous Liniment, he tried selling to stores, Little success met his
efforts. Those stores which did accept his préposition failed to push
the: product and let it stand idly on their shelves.

Such a condition was not to be tolerated by the young fellow and
he proceeded to do something about it. In a market basket, he placed
a stock of Liniment, got & horse and buggy and started out to call on
the farmers in their homes. The method was a success from the start,
for Watkins had sufficient faith in his product to leave it on trial
with no payment to be made if the customer was not thoroughly satis-
fied,

More and more customers were added until the young fellow had to
have help. The first Watkins desler was started while young J.R.
stayed at home manufacturing more Liniment. As time passed, new prod-
ucts were added one by one--products that are still in the line and
selling every day. lMore and more dealers started on their rounds and

-
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a wider territory covered, bul1mg povm
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Today six imposing factories and,iﬁ#—branchesﬂin principal cities

are necessary to keep pace with the sales of the army of Watkins dealers.
From far flung lands, from the four corners ¢f the earth, across the
rolling waters of the seven seas come the treasures of strange countries
in the form of raw products, which go into the making of the more than
300 products now in the Watkins line. The Company is one of the largest
buyers of spices in the world. The mystery and romance of strange lands,

the danger from savage tribes, steaming Jjungles where every manner of

peril, in the form of poisonous reptiles and voracious animals is found-=-
all are brought to mind by the spicy aroma of strange bales and bundles

in the many Watkins warehouses,
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In the comparatively small city of Winona, Minnesota, where this
Y. /jé 52
business had its onigiaf there stands today one of the most beautiful

private office buildings in the world as a monument to the faith J.R.
Watkins had in the: business and as a permanent reminder of what quality
products, fair dealing and integrity combined with sound and aggressive
merchandising can accomplish,

These policies are effectively carried out and exemplified in
advertising printed in the printing plant of the Company. This is the
largest west of Chicago, privately owned and requires all of the space
of a four story building. A wide variety of presses are kept going at
top speed to provide the literature which aids Watkins dealers in their
business.

One of th e best known pieces of advertiding which is done in this
Plant is the Watkins Almanac. Over 2,000,000 copies of this attractive
and useful booklet are distributed free to customers every year. Many
farmers, housewives and others refer to it as a standard guide for
treatment of minor ailments and for its valuable information on other
subjects..

Of all the many products in the Watkins line, Liniment--the same
Liniment as originally made by J.R. Watkins in his home--is the largest
seller, The almost unbelieveble figures on sales show, that three

bottles of this product are used up every minute.. Quality alone, has

won this enviable reputation and made such a sales record.

While the quality of the product itself is of prime importance,
the Company has paid equal attention to the attractiveness and conven-
ience of the packaging. Artists are constantly at work, designing and
re-designing containers, labels and inserts to give the line greater
visual attraction. This in itself is a great aid to dealers but is

only a part of the duty the Company feels toward each dealer.




Close co-operation with each individual is a feature of the busi-
ness, Each one receives what amounts to a thorough course in salesman=-
ship. Men-are taught to bring out the good points of the products in
convineing demonstration. Principles of sales psychology, the value
of courtesy, neatness and tact are indelibly impressed upon them, These
methods are very effective for the Company is careful of the type of men
selected. For these reasons, the Watkins man is welcomed heartily in
million of homes,.

Even during the depression, this remarkable business has main-
tained a steady growth.. New branches are being opened, new products
ad ded to the line and hundreds of new dealers enlisted in the army of
men required to give efficient reliable service to the millions of steady
customers, The growth and development of this great business is indeed

ean inspiring example of what good products, sound mansagement and

aggressive merchandising can accomplish., J.R . Watkins has passed on,,

but the business which he founded and built goes on to new triumphs

and greater growth through following th e principles he laid down.




i INONA=-k Yatkinse Co.

George Connery--rew

'here are people in Palestine and fhaxix Australia, as well as most other

countries of the world, who know of fiinona if for no other reason than that

the g{ﬁ;’?IBgarains products are made in this Minnesota eity. J.R.iatkins fbunded

the company, at first dealing in m% only one produect which he made in his own
home. The unique door-to-door sales system was adopted by him because he
considered that merchants were not promoting hie products with suffleient
enthusiasm. The piginal product was liniment, and it still is the most widely
used of the many produects that the company now produces. The company has the
largest payroll of any in the city, and 9,000 agents sell ite goods throughout

the world.




WINOsA~-k Watkins Co.

George Connery--rew

There are pecple in Palestine and &mxlix Australia, as well as most other

countries of the world, who know of Winona if for no other reason than that

the {ﬁRIgggkins products are made in this Minnesota eity. J.R.Watkins founded

the company, at first dealing in 3% only one product which he made in his own
home. she unique door-to-door sales éyetem was adopted by him because he
considered that merchants were not promoting his products with sufficient
enthusiasm. The piginal product was liniment, and it still is the most widely
used of the many products that the company now produces. The company has the
largest payroll of any in the city, and 9,000 agents sell its goods throughout
the world,




_WINONA COUNTY

Winona County lies in the oldest farming belt of the State,
the southeest dairy district, and has as its chief agricultural assets
a fertile soil, adequate marketing facilities, and a climate conducive
to the abundant growth of grain and forage crops.

Early settlers recognized the potential productivity of the
rich, black soil when they made their claims in Winona County. They
found the soil adapted to many kinds of crops, but with the coming of
railroads, which opened the way to a world-wide ket market, wheat be-
came the chief crop. Immediately after the Civil War, a rapid influx
of settlers took up most of the land, and the county became knowm as
2 wheat-producing area.

The one-crop system of farming, however, was hard on the land,
and the necessity of diversification and rotation of crops became ap-
parent. But it took a succession of crop failures and a sagging wheat
market to swing the balance toward the other small-grain end forage
crops of a diversified agricultural progrem,

With the development of early ripening varieties of corn, the

raising of livestock beceme increasingly important until now livestock

and livestock products account for nearly 75 percen@/ of the farm income.




Winona County
In 1930, 59 percent of the farms were classified as dairy farms.
Market garden products, vegetables, and fruits, because of
the demand in metropoliten arees, are becoming of inereasing importance
each year. The boltomlands of the Mississippi Valley and vallmﬁs of
tributary streams are especially suited to these cash crops. The
problem of marketing these products has been met by cooperative pickup
trucking lines which ply between the farm and shipping or distributing
pointse.
OPPORTUNITIES
A survey of census reports for Winona County shows that farm
acreages are continually being reduced as the large general farms give
way to dairy and specialty farms, and as these more intensive methods
prove their value by yielding a higher return on a smaller investment
for land.
Under the declining price level of the depression years, the
average valuation of land in the county had been forced dovm from 575,06
an acre in 1931 to $50.49 in 1935, which is less than the annual income
per acre on some of the well-menaged specialty farms.
PHYSICAL SETTING
Winona County is in the Mississippi Valley of southeastern
Minnesota. \fhe 40-mile stretch of the castern county boundary is

carved by the Mississippi, while Wabasha, Olmsted, Fillmcore and Houston

Counties form the north, west, and south boundaries. The area is 637 square

miles, or 407,680 acres,
Topogrephy
Along the Mississippi is found some of the most beautiful scenery

in the State, wooded, hilly, and picturesque. The surface is broken




Winona County

and steeply rolling for 10 or 12 miles baek from the river, but beyond
that it is an undulating open prairie. Most of the land is easily cultiva=
ted, though some has been left in permenent pasture and wood lots. The
average altitude is 1,070 feet.
jl?fﬁﬁf?afﬁe

Lake Winona, which is simply a wide alluvial arees of the Mississ-
ippis is the only lake, but the county is traversed by numerous streams,

of which flow to the Mississippi.

A rich prairie loam underlain by sandy subsoil is found in the
western part of the county. The hills of the rugged strip along the river
are covered with a productive, wind-deposited loess. It is slightly

deficient in lime, but lime deposits underlie it at a shallow depth.

This soil washes eabily, and the sepes lopes are subjiect

to erosion, but the wash has beeyn retained in the valleys, where, mixed
with lime, sand, and vegetable mould, it is exe edingly productive.,
Some of the walley land, being more sandy, is particularly adapted to
growing vegetables.
Climate and Raini

ridespread extremes of heat and cold. The
summers are hot and precipitation is high, and the winters, with pre=-
vailing northwest winds, have heavy snowfall and much subzero weather,
About 70 percent of the precipitation comes during the 157-day frost-

free growing season. In spring the last killing frost comes between

and May 25, while the first fall frost comes between Sept. 10 and




Vlﬂona uouncv

Jan.

Febe.

I

s

Mar.

Winona
(Alt.700) : .
Precipitation : |
in inches | 1. 03 1 62 |

]

T
]
] ]

Temperature

(Fehrenheit) | 14,19 18.99 52.3°

Tan.

]

Feb. Mar,

St. Charles !

"'f

Apr. May June Ju]v Aug .

S Hr T ogriiott A.-r
' ' i

2.31 4. ou,

4,70 | 3.70 | u-b?l
4
: : | i
| |

”‘08.09 7544 49

47.7

OJ-U

5'3' tc

Octe. Nove Dece Annual

bt e ol U S wi o il
! i . .
| 1l

] { ]
i

2 47 1. 61 1% 11 3le OO inches
T ‘“"""T"

t
)

91.3 eu.z de o I'66e8

]

{
e o3

'

zfrolOI

CLIMATIC RECORD (28 years)
Apr. Ny 7une '7h1v  AUE.

Dec. Annual

- —

Tov.

(alt. 850) : | L ‘ | 1 i | , |
Precipitation | ' ‘ | ' ' ,
in inches 12 | 30:62 inehs

1.08 {1.,01

| 1.46 |

3.40 |

— s =B |

1
]
H
!

Temperature

__(Pahrenheit) | ¥

e e e

28.8

=0 e &)

O; 45 8 derrees

|
R B
Saeal 20582

. . ———— m——— e

A | | |
66.9 70.4° 68.5° 60.7%

————— e~ — = e = = v

S

ol
.
N

3.1% 15,3 | 29.1

t
{
1
|
!

SETTLEMENT AND RACTIAL, ORIGINS

Willard B, Bunnell, Indian trader, was the first settler in what

is now Winona County. In fugust 1849 he built a cabin at the present site

of Homer Vﬁllare, where his family ceme to live and where he traded with

the Wabasha band of Indians. Later in the same year another trader, Nathan

Brown, settled at the place where Dakoh1\hlla?e now stands.
] ¥ €

Two years later several families from ITllinois came to the

vicinity of the present city of Winona. All the men emrned 2 livelihood

by cutting timber on public lands.

A colony of New Yorkers sponsored by the Western arm and

Village Association, an emigration society, settled near what is now

Minnesota City on the west bank of the Mississippi in 1852. Though
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well equipped for farming, they had little practical pioneering
knowledge, and the association soon disbanded,

Successful farming ventures were begun in the same year by
easterners who took up claims in Pleasant Valley. They were native=
born and mostly of English, Scotch, German, and Irish desecent. In 1853
there were about 350 people within the present boundaries of Winona
County, and most of them made their living by farming.

The influx of settlers in succeeding decades brought great
numbers of immigrants from Europe. In 1930 the county had a population
density of 55.2 persons per square mile, or 35,144 in all. German and
Slav were the predominating racial elements followed by Seandinavien and
Britishe There is a large settlement of Poles at Winona,

COUNTY ORGANIZATION AND SUBDIVISIONS

Winona County was created by the Territorial Legislature in
1864, and Winona was designated as the county seat. The county is
divided into 21 townships. Two municipalities, Winona and St. Charles,
are chartered as cities. Thirteen towns are classed as villages, and
twenty-five, each with less than 50 population, are classed as settle-
ments.

incorporated places are:
Town / Population

Winona 20,850 Utica 181
St. Charles 1;311 Altura 256
Lewiston 656 Dresbach 200
Dakota 300 Elba 182
Rollingstone 289 Stockton 175
Ridgeway 162 Minnesota City 151
Homer 150 Pickwick 95
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MARKETS AND

The average tax rate in the county increased from 69.76 mills
in 1931 to 76.86 mills in 1935, but because of the decline in property
valuations, assessments were lowered over the same periodes In 1931 the
taxable value was $21,014,277, while in 1935 it was $16,125,247, and
the levy was lowered from $1,503,023 to $1,297,712.

Indebtedness

On Jamuary 1, 1936, the debt of the county end its subdivisions
was $982,511.02. Of this amount, £977,811.45 was the indebtedness of the
municipalities and school districts, and the remainder was in county bonds
end township debt. The total debt was 6.09 percent of the taxable value,
or $27.96 per cepita. This compares favorably with the State average of

$82,.,86,

Delinquency

Winona has a low rate of tax delinquency. Of the 1934 tax

levy, $1,241,654, only $67,362, or 5.43 percent, was uncollected. This
sum beceme delinquent in January 1936, bringing the total of delinquent
taxes to $123%,680.
TRADE CENTERS

Winona, the county seat, is located on the Mississippi River,
105 miles southeast of St. Paul. According to the 1930 census, its
population of 20,850 makes it the fifth largest city in the State,
It has acquired the business-like title of the "gGate City", since it is
a natural gateway to a vast agricultural and recreationsl area. At one
time it rated as the fourth largest primary grain market in the world,
and a little later, when the great lumbering industry of the northwest
came into its stride, Wiriona was one of the busiest sawmill towns on the

Mississippis Today it is still a river terminal, but it has also become
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an important railroad center. It is the outlet for trade, not only
for Winona County, but for an extensive surrounding area.

Winona's industries include quarrying, it being the home of
Winona travertine; brick manufacturing, flour, woolen, hosiery, and
hemp mills. It is the home of the largest medicine~manufacturing plant
in the United States and the largest syndicate of foreign=language new-
spapers in America. Dozens of other manufacturing plants, wholesale

and retail businesses, provide work for many people. Three important

colleges are located here.

St. Charles is e thriving city of 1,311 population, located in
the heart of the grain and livestock region in the western part of the
county. It has all the modern improvements of a large city. Its four
cooperatives ineclude two creameries, a grain elevator, and a livestock-
shipping association. It is the seat of the "inona County Fair. It
supports a daily newspaper, and is a recreational center for fishing
end hunting,

Lewiston, with a population of 656 and located in the central
part of the county, is an important shipping point for grain, livestock,
and dairy products. It is the headquarters for the Winona County Farm
Bureau Association, and the county agent lives there.

Alturs and Utica have large cooperative creameries, grain ele-
vators, and feed mills. Both are shipping points.

Homer, a village with a population of 150, is located 6 miles
east of Winona and is the site of the first settlement in the countye.
The U. S. Bureau of Fisheries Station is located here; also the
Liers Fur Farm, the home of the trained otters which have been receiving

some public attention in the past few years.
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COOPERAT IVES
The Winona County farmer has no difficulty in marketing his

yhice., Good roads bring him in close tguch with numerous cooperative
markets, which in turn can handle mass produce easily and cheaply with
excellent river and railroad transportation facilities at hand. The
county has four livestock-shipping associations and four grain elevators.
The Swift & Co. packing plant at Winona yearly purchases thousands of
head of livestock to be converted into meat products. The Bay State Milling
Co. and the malting plants in the same city receive and utilize carloads
of grain. The city of Winona has also a cannery which absorbs vegetable
products, and mills which use hemp and wool.,

Scattered throughout the county are 19 creameries manufacturing
nearly four million pounds of butter parly. Sixteen of these creameries
are cooperative, end three are independent. The Winona Milk Producers
Co-op. Association supplies the rew milk for the area. At Winona are
five pasteurization plants, eight ice cream plantéjand one cheese factory.
Other cooperative enterprises in the county include 2 oil companies, 26
telephone companies, 1 farmers'! electric company, 1 mutual insurance
company, & cooperative production association, and a cooperative burial
associations A 4-unit rural electrification project is now in process
of formation under the REA.

Winona County Co-op. Creameries

Altura Co=-op. Cry. Assn. Altura
Bethany " Ly " Utica

Elba Co-ops Cry. Assn. Elba

Fremont Cry. Assn. Lewiston
Hart Cry. Co. Rushford
New Lewiston Cry. Co. Lewiston
Nodine Co=ope. Cry. Assn, Dakota
Ridgeway Crye Coe. Houston
Rollingstone Cry. Co. Rollingstone
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St. Charles Co-ope. Crye. Assn, Ste Charles
Saratoga Cry. Assne St. Charles
Stockton Co-ope Cry. Assn. Stockton
Utica Farmers Co-ope Crye. Utieca
Wilson Co=-ope Crye Assn, Winona %t
Witoka Co-op. Creamery Winona

Wyattville Co-opes Cry. Assne. Lewiston

» Nad 2
. Figd

Winona County Independent Creameries

Dakota Creamery Dakota

Winona Butter Co. Winona

Marigold Dairies, Inc, Winona
TRANSPORTATION

Winona County is served by five major railway systems: the
Chicago, Milwaukee, °t. Paul & Pacific; the Chicago & Northwestern; the
Chicago, Great Western; the Chicago, Burlington, & Quincy; end the
Green Bay & Western. The Chicago & North Western Railway shops and
division point are located at Winona.

The Northland-Greyhound Lines cross Winona County from north
to south and from east to west, serving all principal cities and towns.
The Merrillan Bus Lines cover the territory between the city of Winona
and Merrillan, Wisconsin, The Stewart Bus Lines operate between Winona
and Fau Claire, Wisconsin.

US 61 (paved), US 14 (paved, bituminous-treated), State 74
(paved-graveled), State 43 (bituminous-treated) and State 76 (graveled)
are the main arteries for motor vehicle traffic. These are supplemented
by a system of State-eid, county, and towmship roads that reach all portions

of the county,

SOCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND AGENCIES
Winona County maintains a child welfare department end a county

nurse. There is also a permanent child welfare secretary. The Winona
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County Public Health Association headquarters are at Winona. A
general hospital at Winona contains 100 beds. The Buena Vista Tubercular
Sanitarium at Wabasha is maintained jointly by Wabashe and Winona
Counties. It is a 30-bed hospital and maintains a staff of O nurses, one
of whom is a field nurse. The specialist in charge holds monthly free
clinics at Winone.

The county also maintains a county farm for the elderly indigent.
This farm is located near Winona.

There are three State parks in the county. Garvin Heights Park
is located on high bluffs just south of Winona. It is an excellent vantage
point from which to obtain a panoramic view of the upper Mississippi Valley.

Latsch State Park is located 12 miles northwest of Winona on US 6l. It

contains some 350 acres available as camp and picnic grounds. Both of

these areas are gifts to the State from two Winona citizens. The largest
park is Whitewater State Park located about 8 miles north of St. Charles
in the picturesque Whitewater River region. Every kind of outdoor recrea-
tion is available here. The fishing is excellent. The first forest service
lookout tower built in southern Mimnesota is located in this park.
Churches

Fourteen religious denominations are represented. According
to the 1936 census, there are 59 active congregations, 16 of which
are Catholie, 12 are Lutheran, and 9 are Methodist.
Schools

In 21 townships the 114 school districts, would indicate that
the school population of Winona County is well provided with educational

facilities. Of the rural schools, two are consolidated, absorbing what

were originally seven distriets. Winona County was & pioneer in the
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consolidated movement, being the first county in the State to have a

consolidated schools Winona city has both a junior and a senior high

school, and seven grade schools. There are high schools at St. Charles

a
and Lewiston ﬁwd/z-year high school at Altura. The consolidated districts
and two isolated areas in the county are supplied with bus service.
The Catholic parochial system et Winona consists of five

grade schools, a high school for boys, and a high school for girls.

Three of the grade schools are conducted by the Sisters of Notre Dame,

two grade schools and the girls' high school are conducted by the Sisters

of St. Francis, end the Christien Brothers have charge of the boys! high

school. Winone has a Lutheran grade school. Other Lutheran grade schools
in the county are located at Silo, Lewiston, end Hart, while Rollingstone
hes a combined grade and high school of the Cetholie denomination,

The city of Winona is the home of three colleges. The first

normal school west of the Mississippi River was built here in 1860, and

is now known as the Winona State Teachers! College. The college of St.

Teresa, & Catholic institution for women, is located here, as is also
St. Mary's College for men, conducted by the Christien Brothers. The
College of St. Teresa was founded by the Sisters of St. Francis, who
also established the famous St. Mary's Hospital at ‘‘ochester, site of
the Mayo Cliniec,

Winona has also a business college which has an average eniroll-
ment of 175,

The first agricultural fair in this county was held on October
30, 1858. Interest in these fairs has never waned, and they are an

snnual event, although reorganization of the association has taken
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place from time to time. The present Winona County Fair Association

£

188 existed for 27 years, and it sponsors a county fair annually at

St. Charles.

FARM INCOME Of the 1929 farm income, which was $5,882,033, or $2,725 for

each farm, 74 percent was derived from the sale of livestock and lives=

tock productse. Crops sold for cash yielded 14.2 percent of the income,

and forest products accounted for only 6 percent. The remainder, 11.3
percent, was in products used by the operators' families.

The value 6? farms decreased aprroximatelf one~third between 1930
and 1935, 1In 1930 the value of farm lands and buildings was $28,214,145,
while in 1935 it was $18,628,190, The average value per farm-in 1930
was 15,074, and in 1935 it was $8,588. 1In 1930 the average value per
acre was $75.06; i 38 it was $50,49,

The farm population of Winona County in 1930 was 10,409, and

»158 farms were occupied. The average acreage was 174,2. In 1935
the population had deereased to 10,068, The number of farms wes 25169,
the average acreage was 170.1. The census for the 5-vear period
indicated an upward trend in tenancy, there being 49 more farms opera-

ted by tenants in 1935 than in 1930, About one-third of the farms
in the county in 1935 were operated by tenants.

According to the 1930 Federal census, 59 percent of the
farms in the county were classed as dairy farms end 19 percent as
general farms. Forty percent of the farm land wes in pasture. Live/L

N
stoek and livestock products constitute the major source of the farmer's
income. He produces crops mainly for feed for his cattle. His chief

3

feed crops are corn and oats and the forage crops, principally alfalfe,
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clover, end timothy. These are converted into finished products
such as beef, pork, poultry, butter, whole milk, creem, cheese, and
eggs. Secondary crops are barley, rye, wheat, buckwheat, flax, and
hemp, the last named being a new crop for which market has Just opened.
Potatoes are an important cash crop, as are the market=gardening products,
including fruits.,

According to the 1935 census, a statistically average farm in

Winona County would have 18 acres of corn, 16 scres of oats, 15 acres of

rain, 6 aeresy”
hay, 156 of bﬂrleg/ﬁneat, 1 5/@ acres, potatoes, 1 acre, and a patch

of rye and flax. Tt would be stocked with 20 head of cattle, 9 hogs,

and 4 sheepe.
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AGRICULTURAL STATISTICS

Population, 1930 (county) 35,144
f-.I‘ea.....‘..........657 square Mile8 seesscsacsscss 407,bij0

County Seat —Winona
Farm Development

Number of farms, 1935 2,169
Land in farms 9045 percent of total area or 368,952 acres
Average size of farms 170.1 acres

Average value per acre, 1 150 .49
1 ~

] " 1 1] s ) 75.06
Average value per farm, S $8,588.00
. " A ‘ $13,074.00

Thg Tg;yf}pﬁp;f

Total taxable value, 193 $16,125,247.00

5
Total generel tax levy, 1935 1,297, 712.00
Average tax rate, 1935 76.86 mills

Total debt of county and subdivisions $982,511.02
Per capita debt 27«96
County bonds 3,946.01
Total bonds (county and subdivisions) 981,757 «46
The total debt was 6.09 percent of the taxable value.

Tenancy and Nortgage

o AR R Y Sy 1930
Number of owner-operated farms 1,254
Part owners 180
Managers 16
Tenants 668
Percentepe of tenancy 3049
Percentage of farms mortgaged, (owmer-operated)
Amount of farm mortgeage debt,
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Farm Income (1930 census)
Total farm income $5,882,033
Average farm income 2,720

Sources of Incomes
Percent

Crops $834,729
Livestock $2,069,363
Livestock products 2,819,812
Forest products 34,745
Products used by operators' family 667,584

"~ §5,882,033 100. Percent

Livestock Holdings —19356
Dairy cows producing milk
All cattle
Swine
Sheep and lambs

Crop Census ==1834

Crop Farms Acres Bushels

Wheat 487 5,752 43,600
Oats 1,462 36,213 702,534
Qats cut & fed unthreshed 124 1,546
Barley 1,301 32,925 516,012
Rye 86 1,006 9,286
Flax 132 1,603 13,736
Mixed greains 636 11,877 225,263
Corn for all purposes 2,212 40,537
Corn for grain 1,906 24,710 938,603
All hay & sorghums for forage 32,005 27,380
Annual legumes (grovn alone) 811 5,933

" (harvested) 20 1,982
Irish potatoes 1,970 2,384 196,610
All other vegetables 857
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Schools of Viinona

Education has proved one of the first interests of Winona from
the earliest days to the present. The schools were primitive in Winona
8l years ago. It is a long step from the primitive schools of Winona in
1855 to the elaborate institutions of today for grade, secondary and col-
lege education.

There are no official records regarding Winona schools before
the great fire of 1862, which wiped out the most important part of the

city, but it is known that they were held in rented buildings and were

supported at first by contributions of parents rather than directly by

taxation. (The ¥inona Rep. Herald, November £0, 1930).
The first school in the c¢ity of Winona was taught by ¥rs. E.
B. Hamilton at her home in the early summer of 1853, although ingelia

Gere, & young girl of 14 or 15, had for a few years the previous summer

P o
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taught a class of eight or ten children in the shanty home of "Aunt
Catherine™ Smith, then lirs. A. S, Goddard.

Miss Mary Willis, an elder sister of the late Henry J. Willis,
coal dealer, taught the first school that really deserved the name. It
was a private school and was taught in the fall of 1853,

The Winona Republican of December 2, 18568, complains that 100
scholars were crowded into a room over a harness shop and 100 more were

waiting to get in. The following year there were four schools in opera-

-

tion. The educational system was kept going with difficulty in the years
between 1856 and 1860, during the depression incident to the panic of
1857.

The following letter to Orrin F., Smith from Charles E. Ely con-

cerning the early schools in Winona is of historical interest.

"In 1854 on Front Street about 300 feet east of the lorth-
western railroad bridge was a school of sun-burned, barefoocted, one sus-
pended doughnut eater, presided over by a lady whose name is to memory
lost. ©She wore glasses gracefully and made good. She landed on the
craniums of the youth with a map of every place and the multiplication
table set to music. Her sweet voice and pleasant smile taste good after
these long years."

In 1855 Almeda Twitchell came to bat. She fought the mainsprings
of deviltry in the youth of that date. She had a hard job. The town had

grown-and 50 or at times more unruly fighters and their sisters had to be
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shown the road to civilization. Jdmeda did not heve time to crimp her
locks or play with the powder puff. Her temple of learning was on Front
Street south of the site of Porter's mill, now the Bay State Mill.

The oldest school building now standing in Winona that was used
for school purposes is located on the east side of Johnsteon Street between
Second and Third Streets and was used as a store by lMiss Fannie Hughes.
The building was erected in 1856 end here liss llary Ford taught 60 to 70
pupils in the winter of 1858. There were no desks in the school, just
ordinary wood benches were provided for the children to sit on. And thus,
we may conclude, the early education was conducted privately.

The earliest existing official records were made at a meeting of
the school board on July 9, 1862, and they reveal that during the previous
year V. J. Walker had served as principal and high school tezacher
salary of $55 a month; and, there were seven other teachers, five of them
receiving a salary of $20. The fi uperintenisrt was employed in
April 1862 at an annual salary of $1( year his salary
raised to $150.

Undoubtedly he gerved in > capacity of the members of the
school board of ay (1936).

The first scheol building erected for school purposes by the

o

school authorities of Winona was dedicated on January, 1863. 1t was loca-

ted where the iashington school building now stands. This old school

builéding was later moved to the northwest corner of 8t. Charles Street and

Broadway where it was used as a residence. It has since been renodeled in-
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to & wodern home. (Paul P. Thompson, local historian; p. 16 lliss Caroline
Smith's).

Changes have been made in the curriculum and methods in the Winona
schools. A special teacher was employed for penmanship as early as 1879,
and for music as early as 1871, Manuel training and domestic seience were
introduced in 1903, the latter because it would, the board was told by one
of its members, "tend to make lovlier sweethearts, more adorable wives,
nobler mothers, and more economical housewives." Kindergarten instruction
was begun in 1893, 4 part-time instructor in physical education was en-
gaged in 1897 for $l0 & month. Emphasis upon training bodies as well as
minds has steadily increased.

The gquestion whether married women should be employed as teachers
caeme before the board as early as 1887. The board decided the practice
would establish an undesirable precedent, and a married teacher was noti-
fied her resignation would be expected at the termination of her contract.

Six schools were built in the 11 years between 1885 and 1896. The
needs of the city for many years were filled. As population remained about
stationary, and parochial schools took away scme of the public school en=-
rollment, it was 20 years before another school was built.

. A new Senior High School was built in 1916. The old high school

built in 1867 was used as a Junior High School, thus, also, relieving the

grade schools of the city. It was replaced by a modern structure in 1926,

Inereasing emphasis upon physical education was recognized by the
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completion of an up-to-date gymnasium early in 1929 for the use of all stu-
dents of the Senior and Junior High Schools.

Replacement of one of the grade schools, the Central School, was
one of the first steps in a building program designed to bring Winona's
grade schools up to the standard of its High Schools. Two other modern
public schools have been built since; the Madison and the Washington-
Kosciuazko Sechools. The latter had its first opening in January 1936.

From the Rep. Herald of November 20, 1930, we learn that the first
parochial school in Winone was a Germen School in the late fifties across
the street from the present plant of the Leicht Press. The number in-
creased rapidly in the last 25 years of the 19th century. Today more than
one-fourth of the school enrollment in Winona is in the eight parochial
schools,

The first Catholiec School in Winona was established in 1859 by
Rev. Michael Prendergast, first resident priest of Winoma. It has succeeded
in 1874 by the St. Thomas school., In 1929 a separate building was erected

across Center Street from St, Thomas church, for high school instruction

for girls of the parish as well as for the grade work for both boys and

girls., A Catholic High School for boys was erected in 1911 in memory of

Bishop Cotter.
A German Lutheran School was established in 1866 by the Rev.
Phillip Von Rohr. Six pupils were enrolled the first week, but in a few

months the number had passed 80.
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To those who formed our community--beating out the paths to "a
good school"--we owe "heap much" recognition of their vast problems and
their faith in the future. The courage to carry through, to develop
and to attempt vast enterprises has had 1its material reward. Their

dreams of yesterday have become the realities of today.
Colleges of Winona

Winona can claim three colleges, one of which dates back to
September, 1860. In “ugust 16, 1859 an application was received from
the City of Winona at the first meeting of the State Normal board of in-
struction asking for a normal school, Thus, the first Normal School west
of the Mississippi was opened in Winona on the first Monday in September
1860. Although it is the oldest, it has & new strictly modern plant and
equipment. The student body includes both men and women.

The college is recognized among educators throughout the nation
as being among the best schools of its kind., It trains its students for
meny kinds of teaching service as regular instruectors in the schools of
the state and as special teachers of industrial and fine arts, music,

physical education end kindergartien.

The college offers a two-year course leading to a diploma and

a four-year course leading to a degree of bachelor of education. (The

St. Paul Pioneer Press, larch 24, 1929, Sunday Paper) .
The College of St. Theresa is an institution for the higher edu-

cation of women. 1t holds membership in the North Central Association of
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American Universities, this being the highest rating attainable for an
merican college.
It confers the degrees of bachelor of arts and bachelor of science.
It offers broad training for professional scientific careers, including li-

brary work, banking and high school teaching. A standardized conservatory

of music is maintained in connection with the college.

(The 3t. Paul Pioneer Press, March 24, 1929.)

St. Mary's College was founded in 1913 by the Right Reverend P. R.
Heffron, D.D., late bishop of Winona, for the higher education of the young
men of the Northwest. For 20 years the College was conducted by the dio-
cesan clergy, during the earlier years as a junior college and academy, and
since 1925 as a four-year college of liberal arts., In 1933 St. Mary's Col-
lege passed into the control of the Brothers of the Christian Schools, a
religious congregation of teachers founded by St. John Baptist De La Salle
in the latter part of the 17th century, under whose direction the College
is now conducted, with assistance from diocesan priests and Catholic lay-
men. The work of the College holds the keen interest of the present bishop
of Winona, the Vost Reverend Francis M. Kelly, D. D. The faculty is es-
pecially chosen because of intellectual and moral fitness to execute the
aim of the institution, namely the most thorough training of the intellect
of the student, together with the full development of his moral character

and religious ideals. To effect these results the authorities of the
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College aim to combine the atmosphere of the school with that of the

Catholic home. The domestic needs in the home life of the students

are cared for by the Sisters of 3t. Francis, (St. Mary's College

Annual Catalogue 1935-36.)
Noble buildings are not only necessary, but inspiring; fine

natural surroundings are important; full and generous courses of study

%
must be given; the personal friendships among teachers and students;

all these things are necessary and desirable and all are found in full

measure in our 20th century schools and colleges of VWinona, Kinnesota.
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aleo use Winona made flour from this mi Continued efforts
established a flour trade for Bay State Mill until the product
now reaches the markets of Cuba, Sweden, Turkey, Italy, Demmark,
Finland, Malta, Greece, Gibraltar, Algiers, Ireland,
many and and jacked and packed to meet the
countrye.
To meet tI : rade the company hes inst
with a capacity of 1 —aushels and it is a common

&

entire train loads of grain on the railway tracks waij

-

loaded. Only the choicest hard spring wheat is used at the Bay

1.

Mill, selected by expert buyers wi pergonally visgit the harvest

ields of lMinnesota dnd the Dekotas to make the selection regquired

The£f£p/

two leading brands, known the world over, are Wiingo and "Bay

for the production of the standard products of the
State" and the management watchesg with a jealoue eye to see that the

high standard of the flour is maintained at all times. A very modern
and up~-to-date laboratory is maintained where a constanll check is
kept on this product at all times makeing sure of uniform flour of
the highest quality.

Among the industries of Winona are found the Largest Medicéne
h—rs—*—-—""‘““'-'-—-..)

-

anufacturing plant of its kind in the world, The J. R. Watkins

1 r

Medical Company. Way back in 1868 when Minnesota was young, when
Indians roamed her plaing and hills and when great forests covered
many parts of this state, a new business was started by a young man

who came tc Winona after the Civil Was from his home near Cincinnati,
f

Ohio. This young man, Joseph R. Watkin: ras & pioneer in this new/
kind of business and the originator of a novel and highly effective

system of distribution, organized house-to-house selling.

The Civil War had just ended. The trying reconstruction period

had barely started when young Mr. Watking launched his new enterprige,

the manufacture and sale of a wonderful Liniment. At first he made
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it by himself, bottled and labeled it, then set out to sell it. In
& little market basket he placed the few bottles he had prepared and
to home selling to his heighbors.
good people of the community tried young
oon won over to it because of its excellent que
The fame of the product
the surrounding countryside. Mr.
product and his method of distribution were the best, soon drew to
himself a great number of men who went out into their respec
communities to sell Watkins Ictge. ne y one, carefully sele-
cted, scrupulously tested new products were added, each inc
the prestige and popularity
Step by step, stone by stone - ittle enterprise which star-

ted in one room and had but a market basket for its store, grew.

Today about 8000 dealers sell Watkins
\.—-—""’—.’.

T,
~

Union and every province in
comprising
and Berfumes, ( 3 Toilet Arti 8 dicines, 8tock and Poul-
try Preparations, all of exceedingly high quality which is the cause
of their great popularity.
In 1900 the first four-story building was put up in Winona foll=-
eselion by others of four, six and eight stories and

culminating in the magnificent ten-story structure whose tower and
| = v

~

flagstaff are landmarks for many miles around. These buildings in
Winona occupy more than an entire city block and are fronted by a
most beautiful Administration Building which is consgidered one of
the most beautiful in the emtire country. You are cordially
invited to visit the offices and factories at Winona or the other
Branches of the J. R. Watkins Company.

T There are twin 7-gtory buildings at Memphis and

A
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$2,000,000,00 plant at Newark, New Jersey,
ipeg, Canada. Other Branches are located at New ] ansas City,
Columbus, Oakland, Los Angeles, Chicago, Montreal, Vancouver. The
Je Watkins Company is "The largest and oldest Business of its
kind in the Vorld."

The J. R. Watkins lMedical C ny maintains a pay-roll approX

imately 1,530 people, representing approximately 1,800 of Winona's

population. Through the methods &f merchandising Watkins Products
Winona is known all over the world, even to the most remote places.

This world famious institution is something that Winona is very

very fortunate in having its headquarters here in Uiﬂoqz

Co. of Winonas
cash value into any otherwise wast product agriculture, in-
ntally pay good wages to labor, and good frofits on capital
seems well entitled to grateful public appreciation. Any
can feel a justifiable pride is
the same, |
Minnesota's flourishing city of Winona has such an industry in
its Union Fibre Company, Inc., which converts flax
fibres into baluable heat and cold insulating and
building materials.
Its products are now being shipped all over
xport abroa Many of the la
most palatial homes in the Northwest make use of its materials for
the lining of ro and walls. The roof becomes more of
real shelter when insulated with these Winona products « The three
| leading prodi g8 of thi ompany are fibrofelt, linofelt 1ith,

~

for insulation and sound

deadening pubpose It is made from carefully selected flax and
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NOW used in some of the largest plants of this country, such as

T

Ford Motor Co., National Cash Register Cc Delco Light Co.,

Wabash Railw The Milwaukee he Roc 3land, the Northwestern
the So ine among tl ading railroads and a host of other estab-
JoF:
nventor is a man of inventive Dber: of mind and
iron bender herein mentioned,

splendid roch drill and a new

21d factory turns out an
gseveral thousand
weligh

to such locality

No dinner is complete without its relish, therelore one of the

Pepin Pickling Co.,
s bec W
—————— o

where it was first
gince then
a steady and healthy growth,
. These products include dill

1 pickles, spiced onions

i & £ Oh3 :
west of Chicago
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sent all over the country.

The Siebrecht Floral Co. also have large fields of flowers
which are located on highway 61 at the south entrance of Winona.
This Floral Co. has a huge green~house wkere many varieties and

raiged. The slogan of this concern is "If

A wide selection of cut flowers

~

from this local concern.

very fortunate in its wide spread business

~ 1

activities and can be truthfully called the richest city, of its

gize, in the country and the urist including Wirona The Beautifi

on his tour, will be richly rewarded for the time gpent in this

fair-cltye
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The term architecture shallhherein be treated from the standvoint /o

e

theughte~ the style and the texture or material used. The study of

ing naturally develops various ferms. These forms arising frem the heart eof
a problem taks on shape definitely asseciated with their use. Thie result

is elemental in its significance and brings us face te face with Ferm and
Function, the Primal Law underlying all created things. Where there is ne
function or use, no form can arise, and cenversely, ne ferm should exist
without its use or function being definitsly expressed. Thus style and mate-
rial used must of necetsity cerrespond with the use te which each and every
building is subjected.

Things must net have the appearance of being brought together by chance or
for a purpese, but must have a necessary and inevitable connection. I desire
that the creations which I depiet shall have an air ef being dedicated to
their sifuatian, se that ene could not imagine that they weuld dream of be-
ing anything else than what they are. Awerk of art ought te be consistent
and the things in it sheuld always be there for a reasen. RBeauty does neot
consist se much in the things represented, as in the need one has had of ex-
pressing them; nothing can be beautiful, arriving inappropriately. One may
gay that evervthing is beautiful provided the thing turns up in its preper
time and in its own place. Which is the mest beautiful, a straight tree or
a crooked tree? Whichever is the most in place. The beautiful is that which

is in place.

Peonls blessed with the beauty that nature has previded fer Winena, are
Quite naturally and uncenscieusly levers ef art. Preper planning and con-
servatien of naturs's resources make a city beautiful. In additien to this
it requires a united cemmunity interest, pride and vieien en the part ef at

least a few progressive citizens. Mest visitors are beauty beesters and all

aleng the lins and in neighboring states, Winena is knewn as a "Goed looking
J

eity."




Winona has no slums. Manging gardens in the main street of a city with a
fringe of slums on its outekirts is bad advertising. The streets em either
side are flanked with attractive small hemes. That modern menace to city de-
velopment;i£hg flat, is practically unknewn im this city ef twenty-feur
thousand peoprle. Can ¥ou picture a city ef this size with aboutg twe er
three flats? The houses are not "shee boxes" either. They are for the mest
part attractive architectural achievements. Meuses are the Back-bone of a
city. They can elther mar or enhance ite beauty. Winena iec a city eof detack

ed homes and these homes have added tremendously te Winona's claim as a

City PResutiful. The eity has unquestionably a"heme atmesphere! Mest of the

werkers in the sheps and facteries own their own hemes, which are well kept

and planted with flower beds and an abundance of nature's carpet- green

grass. Wide, elmshaded streets lined with comfertable homes, together with

Lake Winena berdered by modern residences, invite you te make Winena ¥oeur
permanent residzsnce.

Numbered among the many fine homes which Winena can beast about is a
beautifulfﬁravertine house on thelLake Prive ewned by Mr. and Mrs. Emil

Leicht. No heme, eutside Phicage, had been built entirely ef trgv-rtin-

S T e WA ST

when Mr. ®mil Leicht deciaﬂi to have enc A heuse eof this buff stone that

B il
i B — i
L ————

;&omed warmly in the sun was (-nd still is ) an innovatioﬁ‘ It can be Baw—

-

=d to diff-r-nt langths and widths to aveid the menoteny of the usual stone

housg

et s 33 e T

- When Mr. and Mrs. Leicht went te Fngland, there on the ceuntryside they
gathered a dream picture of the house they'd build aleng Winena's scenie

) Lake Prive. !A modified maner house mitb‘gmg-minr tile roef, poeinted arches,
quaint gables, and gcnerousjcothic windews te brISEWQZZEM;he beauty ef Lake

Winona and surrounding hills. The house was completed in I%30.

Winena travertine, quarfed in the wluffs near Winona, is the same stene

\
in outward respects, as the celebrated Italian trawertine which is shipped

te many parts ef the world. It has been used since Meman days of glery fer




“

atétues and interiers of palaces in the werid's capitals. In Winona, traver-
tine is even used for sidewalks. Winena travertine made its debut in the
building werld, duringﬁfhe World War when a gentleman frem New York happen -
ed te cope to Winena. Strangely eneugh, he was impressed with the sidewalks.
The New Yorker, with an enviable Background in the marble business, lest ne
__time in reaching the quarry. A few weeks later an order came for 3,355 tons.
The vrrinciral difference between Winena and Italian travertine is that the
a latter is softer when quarried and hardens en exposure. Winona stone is very
hard and stays that way; 1s unaffected by climatic extremes; and is impervieus .
te greace or stain.
| When you consider the Leicht home required IQmeens of ruhbls and that it
took an hour te saw Iand I/2 inches ef travertins, you gefuinwidea of the task.
Stene walls ranged from 4 to 8 inches thick. A slab of stone from the gquarry,

measuring 8 by 4 by 3 and I/2 feet weighed II tons. Mest of the travertine was

laid seam face $outer surface rough, as it came from the hills). Fer the en~

~ >

[ i
trances, decorative trims, and fireplaces, the stene was fabricated (surface

sawed and pelished). When the stone was delivered te the Leicht premises, it
was cracked with hammer and chisel te mae the ends rough fer artistic pur-
poses. FWvery stone was placed according te a pattern. There are squareBslabs
of yellew against slender strips of travertine. Blue stenes leeok vielet en
certaindays. Rust nestled among larger stenes, always adds life. Mr. Leicht
1s proud ef the coeler jeb on the heuse. Five different stones were used. All
stones eame frog Minneseta, except New York Blue which was used for five per
;:;;‘;;‘;;;"5:33;?‘2h interesting sidelight on our state, supposedly reserved
for dairying and iron mines. |

In this heme, four glass Gethic deers capture the beauty of the chain ef
hills that give Winena its nestled-among-the-hills character. M®ising 500 te
800 feet, the hills previde a kaleidescepe of ceolor withthe seasens. This un=~

folding of nature the Leichts enjey frem their wimdews.

Every heme built with care and eriginality has semewherz a symbel of its




5 ]
- -

ewners personality. With Mr. Leicht, printing has been his life werk. Me and

Ris father befors him rublished magazines and newspapers. What could be more
in tune with his interests than printer's devils? There they are at the tep
of the stairway. One devil en each side humped up with rage and gnashing fere-
cious teeth.

Winona invites the builders of trade and hemes. Winena is a geod citiy in
hich te live, but it is abeve all else, a city in which the new-cemer, be he
a transient, tourizt er a heme-sseker, is welcomed and made te feel at heme.

; Winn Tee Pee is a nice big heme for the public's use. It is unigue in archi-

tecture and werthwhile seeing. The very lecatien and name breathe of legends
and leng agoe. Lecated on the east side of highway no.3 at Sugar Leaf - that pre-
minent land mark, always associated with the name Winona - Winn Tee Pee is epen
and accessibkle at any time of the year. Fvery building is eof leg censtruectien
with eld stone fireplaces, even in the cabins - a most unusual sight in South-

ern Minnesota. Teepeess det the grounds and are rented at reasonable figures.

fhus, the name Winn Tece Pee "Winona Teepee Camp."

The interier of the main ledge, garage, filling statien and mechanicfs home
is even mere nevel than the exterioer. Log finish etill prevails, presenting it-
g21f in sidewalls, arches, stairway and curtain peles. The fleer is waxed feor
dancing. The furnishings have an air ef years leng fergetten by mest of us. The

heme has modern cenvenisnces, yet breathes of the woeds and leng age.

Winena is a city of business and beauty. The two have been merged ne more
successfully in anv sectien of the state er country. The eity is a censistent
cembinatien ef the practical and acsthetie, and is truthful in ite claim as
"Winena the Beautiful". Lboeking teward the city frem the east one beholds tow-
ers and buildings eof every size, the business section of the city prever, the
loep-district ef Winona, Minnesota.Winona is the richest city fer its size in
America.

Among the business places are found the largest medicine manufacturing plant
of 1ts kind in the werld. Tn I®00 the first four =story building of the Watkin®s

plant was put up in Winena, fellewed in rari? succession by ethers of feur, six
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eand eight stories and culminating in the magnificent ten-stery structure whose

tower and flagstaff are landmarks for many miles around. These buildings in Wi-
nena occury morde than an entire city bleck and the Winena plant is frented by
the Administration Building which is censidered oene of the most beautiful in the

- g e el bty
country. Neble buildings are not enly necessary, but inepliring. This beautiful,

rich and architsbturallg peffect building is the latest =nd mest striking evi-
dence of the acﬁivity, success and permanency of the company. It is a monument
to the founder of this business and his principles. It extends a full bleck
(300 feet) and has a width of 70 feet with an annex in the rear for cloak and
teilet rooms. It is built of kpmautifully cut blue Bedford stenedeon the outside,

~—

and steel and cencrete within, and finished in the finest mahogany, marble and

tile, with the richest of mural and windew decoratiens. It has all the medern
arpliances and facilities for efficiently dispatching the enormous effice busi-
nessgof the company. The building is built in medern classic style after piaus

oy 2 J«wous architect and construct=d by one of the largeq? and best contracting

copranies of its kind in America. It is censidered the finest private,‘iminiatra-

tien building in the United States and is an hener and credit te the largest cem
pany of its ¥ind in the world. What may appeat an extravance to seme had become
a nece#sity, as the company's rapidly inereasing business became much toe 1argo£
' te be handled in the former extensive office rooms.wa;ﬁhave provided for the
/ future in one department at least by this cemmodious, enduring and distinctive
building.
Words fail te adequately describe the richness of the interier of this mag-
nificent structure. As you enter through the main pertal by way of three sets
of swinging deors, you find yourself on a markle fleer in the spacious rotimda,
and looking up, you perceive the vast dome finished entirely in glases mosaics,

k—\\_‘
the myriads of small rieBes of opalescent glass of which it is compesed being

worked inte ®eautiful designs in keeping with the building, the irridescent coel-

ors scintlllajlgiﬂyith brightness and 1'n~—kﬁmiff_ keauty and airiness to the

interior. The same treatment eof plass mosaics is applied to the face of the
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twelve pilasters supporting the arches of the maulted roof threughout the main
part of the building, requiring ene millien pieces eof glass and giving a rich-
ness of effect which is indescribable.

Standing under the mosaic glass dome, the next features to attract attentisn

ars the rich art glass windows in the arch at the rear of the bullding directly
o ot ke 5 A N O e ey
ecppesite. These windows represent scenes in and around Winena, the famous peak

e ——

in eur kluffs called Sugar Leaf, views aleong the Mississivpi River, Etc. This

e ———

is worked up inte a handsome design by the use of varying thicknese of differea

ent qg}ors of art glass, vying with the famous examples of stalned glass in the

cathedrals ef FTurope, and reviewing what has been censldered as a lest art. The

same treéémené is accerded#to the windews in the arches eof the Third and Feurth
Street entrance te the Administration builiing, giving a rich effect beyond the
power of adequate desgrigﬁ;qn,fgx

Loeking up tewards the sky-light, which eccupies a spacs in the roef ef 168
feet in length by 29 feet in width, the visitor will netice twe hundred and
twenty -four panels of transluecent, epalescent art glass, each ene yard square,
admitting a fleed of light from the sky above. This art glass is protected a-
Bove by glass prisms st in steel and concrete, and the space in between is pre—
vided with a great number of electric lights, with helephane reflectiens, which
at night reflect the light down through the art glass, making a mest beautiful
and attistic effect. These art glass panels are s¢ far up from the fleer that
with the 1ight streaming through them in the daytime, they léek like jewels hug3
in mid-air.

Anether commamding feature of the decerative scheme is found in the rich

marbles that are usedf In the retunda, there is an Alps green wainscet three

feet in height and above this and coveringibethrércﬁés'ié_found finely match-
a ,

ed Sienna marble, vellow in celer, and ef the most expensive deécription. The

entrance vestibules at each end of the building are finishéd in Fnglish veined

Italian marble of the best quality. The private offices in the south end are ap-

preached by a marble landing three steps in height, surmounted by pedestals on
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each side in Alps green marble, out of whieh spring beautiful stands of elect-
ric lamps.

The lighting system is ene that calle feor the highest admiratien. It consists
mainly of twenty-two great ornamental, specially designed concrete and steel
bowls, which sheet the light uy en the ceiling whence it ie reflected to the
floer belew giving a strong yet soft light without any glare or shadow. This is
the most up-te-date system of indirect lighting.

The heating and ventilating are of the latest and mest appreved type, abse-
lutely the last werd on this propesition. The heat is supplied from a central
heating plant, outside of the building. The air is washed through water taking
out all ites impurities, then heated by passing ever stecam ceils, and ferced
thru ducts teo different parts of the building by retary fans driven ®y several
powerful electric moters, making it pessible to change all of the air in the
building every few minutes, giving abundance of fresh, pure air fer the office
employees at all times.

Another addition to the great Watkins enterprises is the Winena Savings

Bank. Bilagenally across from the Post-Office, en the seutheast corner of Main

and Feurth streets, the Winona Savings PRank was erccted. It fronts on Main
T T Sy
street, its length being I35 feet, and its width at the widest part 75 feet.

The design for the Winena Savings Pank building ies medern and distinctly
American in its architecture and represents a new note in wlan and censtructien,
The exterior view is made monumental and impressive by the esmployment of a cent-

ral pylon effect. The twe high menelithic celumns supperting the cernice of the

pylon are of polished granite and are fmur feet and eight and one-half inches
in diamerar at the base, and each thirty'feet high.

The oen+ra1 entrance design forms an 1mprcég:}e architectural effect and is
in harmony with a great banking institution. Om either side of the main pylen
treatment of elevations are utilitariens bduildings, planned and designed as a

part of the bank. Over the wings is a second stery, shown on the exterier with

terminating balconies. As ene =2nters the building frem the central entrance en
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Main street, the spaciousness and supreme elegance ef the interier are at

ence apparent. The ceiling ef the public lebby is over forty-five feet high.

An abundance of imperted marbles ef beautiful texture and celer will greet
and fascinate the eye and mind upon entsring. Palcony effects project from the
four sides on a level with the secend stery, permitting the visiter te ebtain
extendéd visws of the entire fleor below.

The ceiling of the public lobby is beautifully medelled and ernamented and
is so arranged that the electric lighting of the interier is concealed under
the cornice projectiens, thus giving a beautiful lighting effect to the inte-
rior ef the vast public lebby. i

Oppesite the main entrance, and lecated centrally in the pyleu eis ihe gical
gtesl vaults of the institution. Ne money or pains were spared te make them
the ‘safest, as well as the most ariisiiz ¢l the kind in the country. The en-
trance to the vaults is afferded by a beautiful and artistic circular vault
door, which is now the very latest and mest approved thing in the way of vault
entrances and is burglar-preef as well as vault-proef. Tie liue :teel work used
in connectien with this massive deor make it a thing ef beauty as well as of
gsecurityaand strength. The deor itself weighs about thirteen tons. Net only
are the vaults te be burglar-preof and fire-preei, sui they will also be proef
arainet molsture, earthquakes, mob viclence, insurrection and forelgn invasion.
The intericr of the safety derosit vault censists of the most modern and ap-
proved style of safsty deposit boxes] of different sizes to sult all needs.

There are two marked divisions of the interior, namely the banking depart-
ment on the main fleer and the institutienal floer abeve. The banking fleor
is planndd to be practical in every detail, every facility being afforded te
properly transact every phase ef modernu Wanking. The furniture is sspecidlly
designed for its use, and besides being made for service in its broadest sense

ie pleasing and restful te the eye. The bénking space is beautifully lighted
in broad day-light by means of spacious windews, furnishing light frem a l

feur sides.




This artistic nsw bullding may be called an institutienal bank. Py thie
is meant it is designed to bc of real service to the community in which it
i{s located, ever znd above serving the purresa o~ .m» ide«i piacc ‘or the
transaction of purely banking business. The imstitutionzl fleer in the second
story is se arranged as to accomodate both ladies and gentlemen. Certain
rooms are set aside for the use of either sex, with all necessary conveniences
attached, in order to encourage the public to visit the institutien. The en-
/[ tire design and plan keing irntended to respond te a need in =ma»r community
i:to harmenize, commercial banking, secial and civic interests in a practical
| manner, with artistic ideals, thus creating an institution ef intrinsic werth
te the community.

Mr. Geo. W. Maher, of Chicage, who designed the Administratien bullding

—d e ‘____)__,,_——’

of the J. ®. Watkins Medica]l Cempany and the new Winena Savings Bank building

also designed the ten stery and basement factorv building of steel, cencrete
\_\-

and white brick/ The engineer, writing in regard to this(as well as another

at Memvhis)said: JI belicve these twe buildings are unique in being prebakly
?he strongest buildings of seven and eleven stories in the world today." The
fleoer capacity of the buildings is 450,1b57 te tk; sguare footz which is pre-
bably much more than it will ever be called upen to kear. On a recent test,

900 lke. to the square foot was piled on one of the floors] which showed on-

e — o

ly the slighfest deflectien. The building is éﬁrmounted by a brick inclesed
téwer, which will ac:emmodat; the water tanks with a capacith ef 50,000 gal-
lons of water for the sprinkler system of the plant. Around the tower will be

a gallery, whieh afferds a fine view of the surrcunding country. On tep of the

tower ic & scveaty-five foet flag staff, freom which 0ld Glery is flung te the

brseze. This stately building immediately adjoins the Administratien building
- o

en the east, and having the same lines, forms a most pleasing and harmonious

ensemble. It is used for wareheuse and manufacturing purpeses, and we doubt

1f there can be found as handseme and as strong a building in the whole




country. The Watkins company has beautified Winona in a practical way. Com=-
mon red brick might have perhaps served the purpose as well and would have
but with due regard to the su he Company
ided upon the beautiful white brick, at a mueh zreatér expense.

More and more is it coming to be true that when plans are submitted fer
large medern structures in the way of office buildings, bauks, [uctery build-
irgs or szhooels, churchss, places of amusement, as well as homes, Winoeng Tra-
vertine Stone is being cpecified. The quality eof stone produced by the Piesanz
Cowpany, shaped and pelished by the moet modern machinery, 1s c¢ven better than

the Ttallan Travertine, while the seving in freight by fabricating the stiene

in the quarries iz very cemnsiderable, te say meihiang of the greater ease and

gsaving e ‘tine in canstruetien.
We have made amazing progress in the constructioen ef
adle, comfortable huildings. The stone from which the
is made camd from the Piesanz Quarries, three miles west of Winona. The new

Collegs Mall marks an achievement in architacture. It is a completely modern
educational hall and has allthe advantages a 3checl building could offer.On’
n occasicn when state educational effictals and presidents of the various
Teachers Colleges in the state were guests in Winenz of the local scheol au-
therities, James H.McConnell, commissionersy of education, declared %that the
building is typlcal af the bkest school buildings of the generation.
With the exception of one frame building now used &g & men's Rormitory, the
plant e¢f the Winena Teascher's Cellege is all relatively new, archi-
tecturally atiractive and in good conditien. A monumental sullding, if it b
pegutifil and gloricus gives a vislble object round which coliege life
and loyalty can grow.
The Saint Mary's College buildings are all of mest mecdern constructien.
The exterior is designed in an adartatien ef the Corinthian style of ar¥chi-
tecture.

At the Cellege of 8t.Teresa the Collegiate Church of S$t.Mary, and Lourdes




‘Eall, the main residence buildings dominate a college group of many medern
and splendidly equirped buildings. Among these are the £t. Teresa Hall, con-
taining lecture and recitaticn'rocms, the college study, and the administra-
tion offices. St.@ecilia's hall is a conservatory containing music practise
roems, concert roome and studies. All the buildings of €t. Teresdds are con-

sistent in their architectural appeintments.

In the recent building program ef public schoels of Winena, the li#%ﬂbuilt

schoel is the Washington-Kesciuszke building. It is sald to be pme—=e® the fin-
est scheol in the N.¥W. teoday.

Various styles of architecture comprise the building of the churches of
Winena. Ameng scme of them are: the Fpiscopal church - the Gethic type, the
Chapel of St. Teresa's-~the Italian type,and the St.Stanislaus church - the
Roman tyrpre.

Among the several vrlaces of amusement are the magnificent home ef the Wineaa
Country Cluk. Ne need of going te far ¢ii ie.ids to glimpse this scene of rare
beauty. At the féot of these rugged Migsissippi Miver hills lies this levely
place.

It may well be said that Winona's band stand is ene of the most cemplete and
excellent in the Northwest. Fvery possible thought snd effort has been given teo
make 1t permanent, censistently sztisfactery and modern te the last minute. The
structure is largely bullt of brick and cencrete, set upen a foundation eof pil-
ing. It consists essentially of & stilted half-dome set upon a platferm, which

rises about four feet above grade. The outside width of the half-dome or shell
is 43 feet. The arch which is the principal feature of the front is 33 feet high
and 28 feet wide, and is flanked by twin celumns and embellished by other arch-
itectural features, dignifped and suitable to the place.It is situated a little
to the south &fsme=P in Lake Par% se that a comsiderable section of the lake
lies directly in front ef the Band Stand. On quiet evenings, this beautiful
vista will invite many te the use of boats during the concerts.

A wide cinder path has been constructed directly teward the Band Stand, and
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the parking and seating area in front of and westerly from it. Elm trees are
planted throughout the seating area which ferm a sheltering grove over the
benches. These trees are trimmed rather high from the ground sc as not teo ob-
struct the view from automobiles in the ample parking epace behind the benches.
In summing up, let us take note first ef the style of architecture em-

pleyed in the building of hemes of Winona. We have‘CQIQQ}g}) Butch Cg;qnigl,

Fnglish, French Provipcia] and none-typical tfpes - gcomhinatién of American
and ether styles of architec;urc.

Besides businese places already mentiened, much improvement has been made in
architecture along the line ef remodeling store frents. In the last five years,
the firm of Beyum, Shubert and Sorenson of Winena have changed ne less than 235
te 30 store frents. Work was completed on the Federal Rakery front im I1®33. It
ie censtructed of vitralite in mahogany and black, with bright metal binding te
form an attractive contrast, A very attractive front has been used in the build -

ing of the Winona Seed Stere in Jan. I®35. This frent is an Fnglish type.

The manufacturing plant ef the May State Milling Company is one ef the mest

modern and cemplete flour mills ever erected. It embodies the latest ideas of

the world's foremest milling engineers and includes many original features.

Wineona has made histery in architectural achievement. Twe other banks be-
sides the one specially mentiened rank with the best types that Americangar-
chitectes have produced.

The scheels have as a whole perhaps dropped away frem the 0ld Werld archi-
tecture more than any group of eur buildings. The deminant Americanism shines
foerth in these buildings.

Because a sensible Greek or Geth made a thing of beauty of a waterspout by
carving it inte a lien's head er a gargeyle, must America forever have cepies

of these strewn over her buildings?
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THE STORY OF A FUR TRADER

1f we should teke a drive up along the Mississippl River fram the

eity of Winona and eontinue along until we reach almost the northeast corner

of the county, we would come to a large oute-door recreation and plemie grounde
The place is lmown as Chimney Rook Parks Here one may ¢limb & high bluff, at the
orest of which is a great boulder or ¢liff resembling a huge chimmeye. Of course,
it is called Chimney Rock and the park takes its name from ite

One might 1ike to wander to the base of this bluff and imagine himselfl
back in the year 1830, It is just seven years sinece Major Stephem He Long,
with two companioms, made his memorable trip through this territory om his way
to Lake Wimnipeg, far in the Canadian wildss It is also Just seven years since
the first steamboat ranaged to get through the rapids below Prairie du Chien
to reach the upper :‘Missisdippi.

At the base of our bluff, in a little clearing enclosed on all sides by
dense forest, we see & ocabims It is well hiddem from the prylng eyes of some
chance, savage enemys The white men, who are passing up and down the river
more frequently now, would never kmow of its existenmce.

The ¢abin is quite larges It is built of roughehewn logs obtained
from the forest nearby. There is an outside chimmney built of stone and clay,

and the chinks between the logs are also filled with clay. Inside the cabin




we find a huge stone fireplaces

This cabin is the home of ome Francols La Bathe, the first trader
to come imto the county simee it passed into the possession of the United
States, La Bathe 15 a halfebreed, of French end Indisn mixed bloods He 1s
a nephew of the SBloux chief, Wabasha, and from childhood he lived with the
Dakota Indians. That is the name the Sioux eall themselves. He had little
education, but you may be sure he lmows and umderstends Indian ways and
sustoms, and he speaks their language. He is a dark-skimmed fellowy of
medium height and build, and walks with a stoops He wears the dress of the
Fremoh fur~trader; the usual fur oap, long, buckskin jacket fastened at the
waist by a belt to which is secured a sheath, which holds the everepresent
hunting knife. He wears high, leather boots and carried a rifle.

1f we should find him at heme with his family, we would find La
Bathe & likeable fellow, a congenial and friendly hoste Thus he 1s lmown
far and wide, Because of his friendly manner and because of his relatiomship
to the Sioux chief, Wabasha, La Bathe has controlled trading operations

in this area for many yearss The Imdians will allow him to trade where

white men are mot permitted. He will tell us that besides this, his principal

ogbin, he has many eabins or "posts" all up and dowm the river: They are
always located at places where he thinks trade can be seoureds These he
calls "petty posts” and are onmly temporary huts, to be abandoned if trade runs
out and they are no longer usefuls One of them is loeated just a few miles
down the river from his prineipal cabin. His nephew, Joseph Barrette, is

in charge here. Another"post" is located across the river and about ten
miles below Wabasha prairies Two friends of La Bathe, half breeds also,

take care of this poste Tt is here that our trader friend dreams of building

a town some day.




Bosides the family's living quarters, what do we find in these

various "posts” which La Bathe has bullt? Goodsesgoods of all kinds

that might be traded to the Indians in exchange for their supplies of

furss The earliest country storesl Here the Indians and the few ploneers

that might be about, can obtain their supplies of flour, pork, dried beans,
tobacco and salte. lHere also are blankebs, steel knives, hatchets, gpums, powder,
shotj there is a paint called vermilion, which the Indians covets And there

is rum; the Indian's fireswater". Hard as our govermment trics to prevent

ite sale to the savages, yet it is dones Indians become ugly, and dangerous
when they drink liquors

As the years go by other traders ame into the territory. They, too,
try to mak: friends with the Imdians so that they may establish "posts™ among
theme But La Bathe somehow manages $0 prevent this. IHe is a very clever,
man,; end besides, being related to Wabasha, the chief maturally favors him.
To make sure that none of the trade from the Wabasha band gets eaway from
him, La Bathe builds another “post" just across the river from where, in
later years, the oity of Winoma is locateds His nephew, Barrette, takes care
of this "post" alsos It is cocupled in winber only, when the fur trade is
heaviest,

La Bathe has other activities besides solleoting furss The steam=
boats that now pass up and down the Mississippl, need wood to burn in their
steam enginess S0 he has his men at the lower "post®™ establish a woodeyard on
an island opposite their cabin. It is near where years later a settlement
named La Moille will be mades Wood oan be piled or "banked"™ here, within

easy reach of passing boatss An abundance of timber is near by, and the

men can got it into plase for the boats without much labores There are ne




horses and wagons to haul it, so the mem must do all of the carrying, la
Bathe sells the wood to the steamboat captains, and in payment to the men
who have eut it, he furnishes them with food and other supplies from his
"nosts®s

Le Dathe has mother woodeyard about tem miles above Wabasha prairie,
on an island on tho Mimmesoba sidec6f the rivers He has placed a Canadian
friend, nemed Goulet, in charge heres Goulet thinks thet this island is
a very safe and sesluded place, Mhe might have a faym and no'h be
discovefed easily by enemios. rhrongh La Bathe's influence hs receives
permigsion from Wabasha to build a cabin and live heres All of this land
belongs to the Wabasha bande

Goulet remains on his isle:d for a long times MHere he Hends his
farm land and ralses cattles The eold weather finds him chepping wood
for the woodwyard, La Bathe ﬁwn in the supplies which he needss In
winter he has vigitors who sometimes remain for a might of rest or until
e storm is overs These are the Fremsh mail carriers who carry the mail
all the way from Prairie du Chiens The nearest post office, to Fort
Snellings They go by way of the Massissippi, traveling om skates, when
possible, or om snowshoes,

Goulet bescmes quite a favorite with the Wabasha Indians. They
visit him oftens Ome day, ac a party of Sioux pass his place, they stop
for a friendly chats They find him dead om the floor of his cabin, He
has fallen with his feet among the ashes of the fireplace and is severely
burneds

Time passess It is the year 1844, La Bathe, who has built

up an extensive chain of trading posts, has obtained huge quantities of furs




for the imerican Fur Cos lHe has a share in the company's boat, the
"Chippewa®, which opersates between Fort Snelling and St. Louls, carrying
the furs collected from the Indians and bringing back suppliess

But now comes a change. Porhaps La Bathe sees his fur trade
gradually being destroyed by the white settlers who are coming in teo
take the land for farming purposess Perhaps he longs for the old life,
the life he knew when he was a boy, living with the Dakota Indianss Whiche
ever it is, he begins to abandon his "posts™, one after ancther.

OQur govermment, through many treaties, has now bought all of the land
fram the Indisng, We have provided a place for them, on reservaticng, which
are located far to the north, where the Mimnesota River beginss They are .
already begimming to migrate to their new home.

When the Wabasha band finally fold thelr tents and move from the
prairie which has been thelr homestead for so long a tinme, La Bathe goes
with theme No doubt he will be happier among the pecple of his early 1lifes

But a dreadful thing is about to happems The Indians who have
never been satisfied to have the white people owm their old hunting grownds,

make one last effort to get pack thelr landsy In a great uprising of all

the bands, they attask the white sottlers. This is Imowmn as the Sioux

Massacre of 18@Rs la Bathe is killed, and by the saveges with whom he has
spent his life,
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A PIONEER OF WINONA COUNTY

We read in our histories about the first white folks that

moved eut here and populated our Mimmesota when it was mew countrye.

We don't give half enough eredit to them who made our state possible.

They moved here into a wilderneces, cleared the land to make farms, endured
all the hardships and the loneliness that go with pioneer 1ifec. And ‘through
it all, they were in constant @angey of the savage Indien and his scalping
knifee

Living as we do now, in wellepopulated conmunitios,; it is hard
to pleture a t4me whemn this area had hardly any people in its What
sabine existed were miles apmrt, and all the surrounding country was full
of wild beasts and dangerous redskins.

We ask, "What sort of people came out here first and where did they
come from?" Let us hear the story of one who traveled all the way from
creen Bay, Wisconsin, in a birch bark cance and finally came to what 1s now
Winona county, the first permanent white settler hores

When & amall boy, back in his home state of New York, Willard




Bradley Bunnell heard stirring tales of high adventure to be found in that
fareaway western land where white men scarcely dared, as yet, to goe He
dreamed of the time whem he could po forth to seek adventure and fortune
in that strange new country.

Yhen Willard was tem, he was living in Rochester, lew York,
with his parentss Ome day, with another boy older tham himself, he ran
away from homes, He went to Buffmlo on & censl packets Here he obtained
a job as eabin boy on one of the lake steamerss But his father, who had
followed him, caught up with him end took him back homes

Wuio.rd"a father was a physicians That gentlemgn, having once
made a trip to Detroit in the Territory of Michigsn, liked the iittle
French villege so much, that when the opportunity came a little later,

he moved there with his fumilys He became interested in some lend at the

setilement of Sagimew, bought a forty-acre farm and moved his femily thereons

He, however, remainmed in Detrolt to comtinue his practice,

Saginaw was still Indian country, boloﬁging to the Chippewas.
Willard, with his older sister and a amall brother, attended a country school
heree The ohildren were allowed to play with the Chippewa boys and girls
and soom learned the langpuages The two boys oftem visited the Indien
camps and thelr sugaregroves. 'rogether- with Indien children they went
hunting, fishing, swimming end skatings They learned to fight Indian fashions
They also learned to shoot well and to handle & cances An old warrior taught
Willard to kill the great bald eagle, & feat looked upon with gredt admiration
by the Indisns. We can imagine Willard's pride in having ascemplished this

feat.




Once more Willsrd left hames From a Captain Fox, a friemd of
his father, he learned about the duties of a seamsns THenm he worked for
awhile on the lake steamers.

Yhen he was twenky-three years old, he bocame a furwtrader. Ie
sebtled on the shores of Green Bay where he traded with the Chippewas and

Menomines, The climate here brought ill-health upon him and he decided

to move to the upper Mississippi valley region where, in a dryer alr and more
sunshine, he heped to get well agains He was joined by his younger brother,
lafeyette, who was now a dootore ;

Their Journey through the Indian cowmtry is an interesting story.
Willard bought the two largest bark cances that the Chippewas had, He
loaded them with what furs he had and his remaining stook of goods for
trede.s He also took alonz a large guantity of maple syrupe Traveling
down o Green Bay, he traded his goods to the Indians camping along the
ghores, taking thelr furs in payment, In Greem Day he recelved ercellent
prices for his furs, He also sold ono of his cancess The other cance,
which sould earry about four thousand pounds, was loaded with what goods
he had left, such things as were lizht in weight. He had ecalleo oloth,
such colors as the Indisn squaws liked, red, green and blue. There were
blankers, knives, beads end othey colorful ornaments with which the samges
loved %o decorate themselves.

Besides his brother, Willard was accompanied by his wife and an old
Menomines Indian guide who eould speak Chippewa. This guide went only as
far as lake Wimmebago, When the party left the lake thoy had to ercss dangerous
repids in the Pox Rivers They passed the Butte des Morts, meening "The mounds
of the dead.," These mounds were 8o old that nothing could be learned about




them or who built theme As thoy traveled they stopped to trade at
Indien encampments on the waye They were ncw in Wimnebago Countrys
Some of these saveges camplained gbout ths prices on Willard's goods. Ine
deed, at one camp, the Indians demanded a tribute if the travelers expected
to get away safely. This angeped Willard so that he seolded them severely
in the Chippewa iangugc. The Indlans were so swrprised that he sould
speak & language which they understood that they were eompletely silenced.
Then they brought out all of their furs and would have paid the traders
more than they asked.

When they reached the Portage their cance o.nd its cargo was hauled
by wagon to the Wisconsin Rivere BSoon they reached Prairie du Chien, and

here they met La Bathe, the halfebreed Indism furetrader, of whom we have

heards He bought thelr stock of furs for his firm, the “mericem Fur Coe

He told our travelers all about the country of the upper Mlssissippl River,
where he had malntained trading posts for many yeabs.

Of course he tried Lo interest them in stopping at Trmpdlmu.
You will remember that La Bathe dreamed of building & towm here where he
had & posts He believed that this point wuld become a great center of
trades He told Willard about a man named Reed, & Kentuckian, who lived here
and who would welcame them indeeds Bo our travelers started up the Mississippi,
their destination, Trempealeaus Their boat was now much lighter, they
having sold all of thelr furs,

Nothing much happened on the long jowrney up the Mississippi.
When they reashed La Crosse, a settlement below Trempealeau, they found
& single ecabin occupled by two traders. These men were anxious to have




Willard's family stay with them, Willard sald he winhéd to go on to
Trempealeaus They tried to disscurage him by telling him that the place was
overrun with rattlesnakess They evem offered to help him get a olaim,
and plow emough land for a potate patehy if he would retumm afler seelng the
immense rattlesnakes that lived in and around "Jim Reed's town".

So Willard and his companions went ons It was the mouth of Jume,
Just when the Mississippl vulley and the surrounding hills look their grandests
They rested in the shade of the forest-clad bluffs, pausing et places where a
oool, gushing spring would invite them to stop for a meals They saw "Bagle's
Nest," atop what 1s now Queen Bluff, some distance bolow the city of
Winonas The "West" was oosupled and had been for many yearse At what is
now Ricimond in Winoma County, the famous palnter of on the rocks; the name
of George Catlin, the famous painter of Indian characterse It marked the
place where he had spent a night wvhem making a trip through the upper
Mississippl valley, searching for Indisn subjeets to palnt,

Qul party, soon reached Treupealeau, where they received a warm
weleomes Desides Reed and his wife and several childrem, there were
two half«breeds 1iving in this settlement. These men were in the employ
of La Bathe, the fur traders

Willard and his party were invited immediately into Reed's home
and served with a subpor of delleious brooketrout, deer meat, potatoes,
white bread, fresh butter and cream, and luscious wild strwggsriu. Qu#r

travelers found that Reed was quite a prosperous settler, ne/s 187ge herd
of cattle and young horsess A drove of his hogs foraged in the hills for

foode




Of course Reed was just as anxious for the newcomers to settle at his

place as were the men at La Crosse anxious for them to come backe In the
early days there was keen rivalry between settlements, as to which could
procure the greatest number of settlers and thus become the larger towns

Willard decided to remain with Reed for the present and learn something
about the countrys He asked Reed about the rattlesnakes, Reed sald that the
men at La Crosse once became angry at him because he referred to Prairie du
chien as "Dog Prairie"™ and that a poor, miserable dog was used to give the
place a name, To get even with him, they called his Trempealeau village site
"Rattlesnake Hills", Every newsomer, hearing the name, would wish to stay
away from the places Reed admitted that there were many rattlers about
but he said that his hogs were getting rid of them rapidly.

It so happened that Willard, kis wife and brother remained at
Trempealeau for some times Lafayette finally went back to Detroit to cone
tinue the study of medicine,s Willard, however, remained. For several years
he lived in the meighborhood of what is mow Fountain Citys During all this
time he explored thoroughly all of the surrounding countrys He was pleased
with the wonderful opportunities for game hunting, particularly deer and elk,
He found the streams alive with brook-trouts With an old Menominee Indian,
who was an expert trapper, he followed the Trempealeau river and trapped for
beaver, mink and oﬂ:eh These furs were very valuable.

willard was anxious to make friends with the Sioux on the west side
of the Mississippi, because he wished to trade with themes Then too, he had
gelected a site in Winona County, a place he had admired when first he came.
Here he hoped to build a town some daye But he must first obtein permission

from Wabasha, the Sioux chief, who claimed that land., But Webasha did not




trust Willard, because he believed him to be a friend of the Chippewas.,
He spoke thelir language. Besides, he came from the Chippewa countryes
Chippewas were enemies of the Sioux,

But Willard did everything to gain the confidence of the Siouxs

He learned to speak Sioux, They soon learped that he did not kill game

carelessly, just beoaﬁse it was plentiful. That would make an Indian

very angrys. Gradually they began to admire him, then they began to trust him
a little. Soon he was able to join them in their hunting exoursions. He
would dress as they did eawith a beash=clout, buckskin leggings and moccasins,
Them, with his rifle or fowling piece and a blanket, he would spend weeks
with them on same river smong the distant hills,

It was just seven years after Willard came to this territory,
that he was made a govermment licensed trader, Wabasha had finally become
friendly with "the Chippewa" as he called him, He could trade now with the
Sioux in any of their territory. His family, now consisting of his wife and
three children, were staying temporarily in La Crosse. Having gained permission
to settle on Sioux territory, he procured men in La Crosse and set them to
work in the spring of 1849, to build his new home on the ‘el of the river
~in what is now the village of Hamer. The house was two stories high and
built of logs hewn from ocak treess It had a real, shingled roof, the first
shingled roof ever put on any building in this part of Mimmesota. To this
place Willard brought his femily in August of 1849. They were the first
permanent white settlers in Winone County.

In La Crosse, Willard bought a yoke of strong, workeoxen, a wagon
an’ other farm implements., With the help of his men, these were loaded on

to a passing steamer and brought to the new hame,




The men were next employed in chepping woods From time to time,
more of them came up the river on the steamerss Willard hired many of them
to olear the land and prepare it for settlements The wood was sold to the
steamer captains,

Fram the begimming, Willard took a keen interest in the early
settlement of this ecounty. He was the last of the Indian traders and now
his dream was to build a towms He would meet every steamer that stopped
at his place, now Imown as Bumnell's Landing. BSettlers on the boats were
urged by him to land and take ¢laims which he would help them secure.

We can imagine Willard's great disappointment when one day, jJust
two years after his village was started, three men landed on the prairie,
some ten miles faither up the river and took claims for a new settlement.
That prairie was Wabasha's homee You will remember that Wabasha's village
was situated some two miles back fram the rivers This was because the Indians
feared Wabasha prairie, They did not consider it a asafe place to lives
There was a time when it was almost entirely covered by waters And whanever
the river was high, all the lower land on the prairie was flooded and, viewed
from the deck of a steamer pasasing, the part of the prairie that was not
flooded looked very small.

Willard told this to every settler that came his way, believing that

thus he could get them to stay at his settlement instead. Indeed, he made

up a sort of jJoke about it. He saild that same day he would probably have to
got out in his boat and with a pike pole; rescue the floating property of
the settlers from upstroam and take 1t to his town for safe=keeping.

Poor Willardi' He had lived for so many years on the frontier, among

the Indians, that he could not realize how far white people had




progressed, that with money and emergy thoy eould improve and proteet any

place that was as splendidly situated as was the settlement on Wabasha
prairies And soon he would see it grow into a thriving town, far oute
stripping his beloved little village of Homer, so named in homor of the

town back in New York, where he was born.




HISTORY OF WINONA COUNTY

Iransportation and Communication - Early Mail Routes
- Water Routes - Ferries

When the upper Mississippi River wes opened to steam navige
ation on May 10, 1823, the first mail service of any kind was established
in the Minnesota territory. Prior to that time the early fur-traders and
missionaries of Winona County received their mail at Prairie du Chien,
Wisconsin, sending after it as occasion permitted. Later the French mail-
carriers, bound for Fort Snelling, passed Winona County on the river in
the winter time. During the year of the Black Hawk War, in 1832, the
first regular land mail was carried between Ft, Crawford and Ft. Snelling,
The mail carrier was a soldier of the United States army, and his journeys

were on foot, Leaving Prairie du Chien he crossed to the Iowa side and

then continued on the western side till he came to Ft. Snelling, He

ocoupied 14 days in going and returning and carried the mail for a period
of 12 months.

The French fur-trader, La Bathe, had several trading posts in the
Winona County area. The principal one was located below Chimney Rock in
Rollingstone Township and was built in 1830. Another was located at what
is now Minnesota City, one was below the present Winona Burlington bridge
and another was located at Trempealeau, on the Wisconsin side of the river.
These posts were established between 1838 and 1840, La Bathe alsoc had a
woodyard and cabin on Prairie Island just above Winona,

Tradition says that a woodyard existed at old Dakota about 1840,

Du Chouquette's cabin and blacksmith shop also existed about that time in




the present village of Homer. All these posts were used as stopping

places for the early mailcarriers. The first mailecarrier, of whom

mention has just been mede, likely used la Bathe's prinecipal cabin at

Rollingstone,

The first meil route ever established across the county inland,
was between Minnesota City and Traverse des Sioux, now Mankato, located
at the Great Bend of the Minnesota River, This route had been explored
previously for either a wagon road or railroad and eventually became a
part of the territorial road from La Crosse to Mankato, It was the first
post road in the county,

In 1854 Congress established this as mail route No., 14,015. Semi-
monthly service was ordered in the fall of 1855 and the route was after-
ward extended from Minnesota City to Winona and terminated at St. Peters
instead of Traverse des Sioux (Mankato), By July 1, 1862, daily mail ser=-
vice was established on this route,

After the establishment of the territorial road to Chatfield a
stage coach was operated over this route. This stage carried mail and
by 1855 the settlers on this route were receiving weekly service.

In 1851 J, C, Burbank established the first express business from
Galena, I1l, to St, Paul, In 1853 the Walker winter stage line was est=
gblished down through Minnesota end Iowa to Dubugue. Both these lines
carried mail and Winona County was served by them.

In 1852 two postoffices were created in Winona County, the first
one at Minnesota City and the second at Wabasha Prairie, now the site of
Winona, The office at Minnesota City had its mail transported free of
charge to and from the nearest post office on the Mississippi which was
la Crosse, Some colonist either took the mailbag to the landing at

Webaesha Prairie, where a boat would take it to lea Crosse, or the colonist
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would taeke it all the way to La Crosse, Return mail was sent by the la
Crosse office, either by boat, or given to some well-known settler be=
longing to the vicinity, Mail was left by the boat captains at the
nearest landing places, Thus Nathan Brown received mail at his landing
at Dakota and W, B, Bunnell took charge of mail at Bunnell's landing at
Homere.

At Webesha Prairie mail was left in charge of Ervin Johnson,
Later in 1852 the Rev, Edward Ely began making frequent trips to la

Crosse and the settlers came to depend upon him to transport their

meil back and forth. Mr. Ely made it a duty to bring up ell mail

matter belonging to this locality and was accustomed to ecarry it about
with him until distributed to the settlers who usually flocked around
him as soon as his arrival was known, This was readily ascertained, for
it was the usual custom for everybody to visit the landing on the arrival
of a steamboat, All letters sent by the boats were then left in his care
for delivery, It was from this matter of accommodation and from his
custom of carrying all letters about his person, the traditional story
originated that "in the early days of the settlement of this county, the
postoffice was in Elder Ely's hat.

On November 11, 1857, Winona received its first daily mail from
the East, As the county became more settled and stage routes traversed it
more thoroughly, post offices were established here and there, usually
in some settler's home, but sometimes in a pioneer store., These post=
offices inereased until nearly every township had several places for the
distribution of mail and by 1876 there were thirty post offices in the
countys.

On May 10, 1823, the steamboat "Virginia" made the first through

trip from St. Louis to Ft. Snelling. This opened the upper Mississippi
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to steam navigation. Up to May 26, 1826, fifteen steamers had arrived at
Ft. Snelling. By 1839 some nine steamboats were ruming quite regularly.
In 1847-48 was organized the Galena and Minnesota Packet Co, These estabe

lished a system of regularity to river transportation and the Mississippi

became the chief artery of trade and the inlet to immigration. It was the

one method of travel for the early settlers and the only means by which
they kept in touch with the outside world.

Soon other river companies were formed, such as the Dubuque and
St. Paul Packet Co., the St., Louis and St, Paul line and the Diamond Jo
Packet Co,

Very early Winona beceme an important center of trade. The first
wheat was raised in the county in 1852, which marked the begimming of an
important industry that reaches its climax in 1877, In 1859 the first wheat
wes exported from the county. Wheat was shipped in barges and soon the levee
at Winona was lined with warehouses. By 1868 Winona was rated the 4th prim-
ery grain market in the United States, being lead by only Chicago, Mi Iwaukes,
and Toledo, The building of the first railroad in the county, the Winona
and St, Peter, provided & still better outlet for the shipment of wheat,

But the lumbering industry, which was just starting, marked the real be-
ginning of the era of. heavy river navigation.

Winona is located on the Mississippi, at a point so commonly
accessible to the rich prairie lands of the west, that its adventages as a
lumber distributing point combined with ready access to the log supplies
from the upper Mississippi, the St. Croix and Chippewa rivers, marked it
from the earliest days, as an unusually favorable point for the menufacture
of lumber, When the era of railroads began, it enjoyed a demand for its
lumber products second to that of no other market on the Mississippi. The

first lumber yard in Winona was opened in May 1855, and ‘in December of that
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same year the first saw mill was erected., In 1884, the number of hoats,
lumber rafts and barges passing Winona totalled 8,597, When the lumber-
ing industry reached its peak in 1892, there were 5,468 boats that docked
at Winona in that year,

Due to the failure of the log supply in northern Minnesota, the
production of lumber at Winona began to decrease in 1897, By 1909 the
four large sawmill plants ceased operations entirely and Winona, like all
other river cities between Minneapolis and St. Louis, ceased to be a lumber
producer, As a result, river transportation declined also and became re=-

latively unimportant.

In 1919 came another change, when the Federal govermment began

conducting barge service on the Mississippi. This service was operated
directly by the War Department, up to June 3, 1924, Since then the Inland
Waterways Corporation has had charge, but all stock is retained by the
United States, Today the corporation is an important factor in the trans-
portation of the Mississippi valley, for this county chiefly, in the ship=
ment of grain, Its cheap water rates on grain for export, according to
recent records of the St, Louis Merchants' Exchange, enabled the farmer to
receive nearly 3¢ a bushel more for his grain, This sort of set the price
of all grain purchased by dealers for export,

Thus far, the business of Inland Waterways has never been oper-
ated at a profit, from a strictly commercial standpoint, But it is believed
that with the completion of the nine-foot channel construction work that our
system of river transportation will be greatly developed and the upper Miss-
issippi will once more become an important highway of traffic,

To complete a discussion of early methods and routes of travel
and trade in Winona county, mention must be made of its ferries, As early
as 1855 an attempt was made to establish a ferry across the Mississippi

from Winona to the Wisconsin side of the river., It did not materialize,
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however, until 1865. In May of that year the initial trip was made with
the boat landing six miles upstream, there being no wagon road across the
bottoms opposite Wiﬁona. A few years later a road was opened through the
Wisconsin bottom lands, directly opposite the city and this resulted in

better trade facilities between Winona and the East., A barn was erected

for free storage at the juncture of the Wisconsin road end the ferry land-

ing. The Burbank Stage Co., was then induced to cross the ferry at Winona.

When a mail route was established between Winona and Eau Claire, Wisconsin,
the mail stage used the Winona ferry.

There were several ferry boats operated by private enterprise,
March 31, 1873, Alex C, Donaldson begen making regular daily trips from
Dresbach to La Crosse with his skiff ferry. He ran three seasons, between
the above places, averaging 200 trips e season, of 18 miles a trip. In
1876 the trips were extended rumming from Dakote to La Crosse., He averaged
the regular 200 trips, of 20 miles each, every season. Mr, Donalson was
considered one of the best oars men on the Mississippi.

What is now leMoille in Homer Township was once known as McGil=-
very's-landing. Mr. McGilvery operated a ferry boat between this landing
and Trempealeau, Wisconsin, for the benefit of Plckwick and vieinity. Flour
made at the famous mill at Pickwick was shipped away by means of this ferry.

A wood boat was operated in the early days to transport livestock
from Winona to Minnesota City. Passage through the sloughs to reach this

place was difficult.




WINONA DANS

1935 was the big river construction year for the area around Winona.
Four dams comprise this area, namely: Whitman (5), Winona (5A), Trempealeau
(6) and Dresbach (7).

The Whitman (5), northernmcst dem in this area, is completed and in
operation. A new lake has been created here and the present year will see
similar lakes established above the other dams, bringing actual nine-foot
channel conditions to Winonsa.

All major contracts in the Winona area have been let with the ex-
ception of some small clearing tracts and buildings at the various locks and
dams. During the year 1935 a total of $1,358,233.07 was paid out for wages
by the contractors in charge of the work here.

The United Construction Co., builders of the Winona deam, paid $469,

731l.16 in wages during 1935 up to Dec. 15. This project is now 93 percent

complete. Difficulty was encountered at this dam when the outer wall of the

auxiliary lock, weighing 800 tons, was moved out of place, by swift currents,
a distance of 9 3/4 inches, The massive concrete wall was held in place,
however, when a temporary cofferdam was thrown around it to relieve the pres=-
sure and tons of sand were piled against one side until the piers of the
dam proper could be poured, thus checking the bulge.

The Trempealeau dam, built by Spencer, White and Prentis, Inc., is
95 percent complete. A total of $387,2569.38 in wages has been paid during
1935 on this project.

The Dresbach dam is now under construction by the Warner Construction




Co. of Chicagoe It is to be ready for operation in January, 1937, and a
Februaery last report shows it 36 percent completeds The long, earthen dike
there is being built by the Minneapolis Dredging Co. This work will be
completed for the 1937 navigation season, as well as the clearing of that
pools

Clearing in the Winona area is also well advanced. The Nevada Con-
struction Co. has cleared much of the main section of £he Winona and Trem—
pealeau pools, although this work has been hampered greatly by the snow and
ice. Remaining clearing work in these two pools, beginning with January,
1936, consists of some 900 acres. Approximately 500 acres along the Trem-
pealeau River adjoining the Deltes company's holdings will be let for clear-

ing as soon as the courts make the land available.

Court actions on condemnation of lands will be in the foreground

during the coming year. The largest of these will be the claim of the Latsch
Memorial board for property owned by the city of Winona.

The Mississippi 9-foot channel project has done much for the entire
Northwest to put it on an industrisl parity with the rest of the nation.
Winona has experienced it as an incentive to business. Personal injuries
have made much work for doctors and hospitals. Housing accommodations have
been inadequate and business has been better than at peak times before the
depressione.

Winona's populetion grew rapidly. Engineers, contractors, supply
men and inspectors descended upon the city. All avaeilable houses were snatch-
ed up, office space was at a premium and business houses enjoyed e wave of
prosperitye

The 1930 census gave Winona's population as 20,802. An estimation
when the channel work was at its height revealed that the city had 28,000
inhabitents. At that time five dems, each costing nearly five million dollars,

were being constructed within a 25 mile radius of Winona,
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While the channel primarily is a navigation project, it has several
by-products. Where practicable land was acquired for wild life purposes
under the administration of the Biologicel Survey and the Bureau of Fisheries.

On the Minnesota side all bottom lands are a part of the Upper Mississippi

River Wild Life and Fish Refugee. Of this, the largest unit touching on

Winona County is the Latsch Preserve consisting of some four thousand acres.
Directly opposite the city of Winona is located thé Delte Fish and Fur Farm
which covers a large area along the river. This is owned by a Winona resi-
dent and is under Wisconsin jurisdiction.

Duck hunting in the pools in the Whitmen dam area was the best the
past fall it has been for years, and it has become a fisherman's paradise.
This situation will preveil in and around pools near the other deams when com-

pleted. Pleasure boats are increasing and more summer homes are being built.

Sources of Material

Winona Republican Herald, Dec. 31, 1938.

St. Paul Dispatch, March 4, 1936
(Article by Gordon Closway, Staff of Winona Republican Herald.)

Consultants, U. S. Engineers, 4256 Choate Bldg., Winona.




RAILROADS

Early Winona was dependent upon the stage coach and steamboats

for transportations The first railroad train ran from Winona to Stock-
ton in 1862, and during the following 30 years, the great era of rail-
road building in the United States, Winona gained to present enviable
position as the meeting place of five railroads.

This position was due partly to the natural advantages of the loc-
ation of Winona, but it would not have been attained if Winona had not
had citizens of enterprise and vision, ready to chempion vigorously its
interest against the ambitions of other places. The first railrocad was
built only after years of persistent effort in the face of great obstacles.
Other railroad comnnections were secured by the payment of sums of money
which were & real strain upon the small city, and in some cases Winona
citizens were called upon to personally finance railroad construction.

The Winona and Ste Peter railroad was one of the first four chart=-
ered in Minnesota, known as the land grant railroads. The charter was
secured in 1857, a year before Minnesota became a state. Fifty miles of
grading and bridging were completed before the end of the year 1858,

Due to the panic of 1857 the company met with financial difficulties and
no further work was done until 1862. When the first 11 miles were com=
pleted from Winone to Stockton, the town and the railroad celebrated.
Excursion trains were run to and from Stockton, and Winona citizens were

invited to ride free of charge.
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From this time construction proceeded rapidly, and by 1873 Water-

town, Se D. became the western terminus of the road.

In the beginning there was considerable danger that La Crescent,

rather than Winona, would be made the eastern terminus and certain bidders
for the construction contract worked with La Crescent land owners who wanted
to obtain the road. After a hat contest, the contract was awarded to a
company that agreed with the citizens of Winona. Another controversy con-
cerned the choice of routes out of Winona Land owners in the eastern part

of the prairie wanted the road to leave Winona by way of Suger Loaf but those
preferring the western route prevailed.

"inona was connected with the east by railroad in 1870 with the
completion of the La Crosse, Trempealeau and Prescott railroad from La Crosse
to Winona, and the construction of a temporary bridge across the river
at Winona, which was built across the ice in four days. Much rivalry ex-
isted between Winona and La Crosse over the construction of a line connecting
the two cities, but again the enterprising citizens of Winona won oute The
permenent bridge across the river at Winona, feel May 26, 1871, under the
weight of a work-train loaded with stone, but none was killed. It was re-
built and in operation again by January of the following year. In 1867,

the Chicago and Northwestern Railway Company gained control of the Winona

and St. Peter road and in 1870 they took over the road from La Crosse to
“inona.

The Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul line operated its first regular

passenger train from Winona to St. Paul, on Sept. 7,v1871. Passengers and
freight were ferried across the Mississippi River at Hastings at first, but
e bridge was put in operation in three monthse.

The railroad at first used the tracks of the La Crosse, Trempealeau
and Prescott for through communication with the east after the rebuilding of

the bridge at Winona. Later in the same year its own tracks were extended
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as far as La Crescent, and freight was sent to La Crosse by this route
being ferried across the river from La Crescent, but passenger trains
continued to run across the Winona bridge and over the North Western line
until 1876. The bridge joining La Crescent with North La Crosse was com-
pletéd in this year end it was of course used by both passenger and freight
trains of the Milwaukee.

The city of Winona had given the builders of the St. Paul road
$100,000 on condition that they establish through communication with La
Crosse and the east by means of a truss bridge at Winona. The city after=-
ward contended that the bridge was partly a pile bridge and not entirely

a truss bridge, and on this ground recovered in a long course of litigation

$182,050, which included the original bonds of $100,000 interest, and

court costse

The Green Bay and Western road was first put into operation be-

tween Green Bay end Winona Dec. 18, 1873. It used the North Western bridge
and station at first, but in 1891 completed a spur to the Wisconsin end
of the Burlington bridge, and since then has used the Burlington bridge
and station. Winona was decided upon as the western terminus of the road
only after 35,000 had been subscribed to aid its builders. The money was
pledged by public-spirited citizens with the understanding that they would
be repeid by the city as soon as it secured authorization from the legis-
leture. The legislature made repayment conditional upon a popular referen-
dum and the proposal was defeated at the polls, Meanwhile the subscribers had
been compelled in court suits brought by the railroad to pay the $35,000
out of their own pockets, and they have never been repaid.

The Winona and Southwestern railroad, which later became a part
of the Great Western system, was built with Winona capitel from Winona
to Osage, Iowa, between 1888 and 1891 Ownership changed hands several

times in the nineties, and the road went into the hands of a receiver in




1894, It was acquired by the Great Western line in 1901 and operates

under that name todaye.

The first Burlington train passed Winona on the Wisconsin side

of the river Apr. 9, 1886, and Winona was connected with the road the
same yeare. For several years trains were teken across the river on a
ferry in summer and a temporary bridge in winter, but in 1891 it began
using the present Burlington bridge, which was built jointly by the Bur-

lington and Green Bay reilroads and Winona interests.

Sources of Materisl

Winona Republicen Herald 75th Amnmiversary edition.

History of Winona Coes Vol. I Wedge & Whipple.




HISTORY OF WINONA COUNTY

History of Ferries

Early efforts to establish a ferry from Winona to the Wiscon-

sin side of the Mississippi terminated in the incorporation of the "Winona

Ferry Compeny" on March 25, 1855. A twenty-five year franchise, immediately

effective, was granted, capital stock was §3,000, with the privelege of in-
crease to $10,000, Insufficient trade might have caused the company's
failure to accept the franchise and the privelege conferred expired by limit-
ation, In 1857 a second and more ambitious attempt was mede, resulting in
orgenizetion of "Winona Ferry Company No. 2", with stock placed at §20,000,
Owing to the depression of 1857 it failed to materialize.

The third and successful attempt to establish a ferry at Winona
was made by Samuel D, "Captain" Van Gorder, who obtained his first franchise
from the Wisconsin legislature, and permission from Winona County commiss-
ioners and Winona city authorities in 1865, In 1868 he obteined a ten-year
franchise from the Mimmesote legislature. &Le built his first boat, the
"Turtle", with a four double-team capacity, costing $2,000, and mede his
initial trip on May 27, 1865, landing six miles upstream, there being no
wagon road across the bottoms opposite Winona,

~In the beginning trips were made by-weekly. Rates of toll were
one dollar for double=team; single horse and carriage 60 cents; stock, 25
cents per head; pedestrieans, 25 cents each; merchandise, 10 cents per cwt,
These rates continued until 1868, The Minnesota franchise fixed toll rates

at about 75 per cent of those asllowed under Wisconsin charter,




Roads through the Wisconsin bottomlands resulted in better
trede facilities between Wisconsin farmers and Winona merchants, Captain
Van Gorder also erected & barn for free storage and induced the Burbank
Stage Company to cross the ferry at Winona, When a mail route was est-
ablished between Winona and Eau Claire, the mail stage used the Winona
ferry. Thus ferry traffic increased and Van Gorder built a larger boat
with ten-team capacity. All bridges on the Wisconsin ferry road were
swept away in the spring of 1869. That same year Captain Van Gorder's
boat burned end he built e new one with twelve=team capacity.

In 1878 the new $5,500 steamer "Van Gorder" was built, with
a sixteen-team capscity., In 1880 Ceptain Van Gorder treansferred the
ferry charter and franchise to the city of Winona; also ownership of his
steamer and the ferry road on the Wisconsin side.

In 1883, the city rebuilt the ferry road with bridges and
macadamized approech at e cost of some $20,000, In 1887 a 1,500 footbridge
with decline of 100 feet on south end was added to the ferry road proper,
to be used in connection with a cable ferry., Cost of construction was

$9,500 and this bridge was for years a part of the high wagon bridge. The

cable ferry, built the seme year, continued in operation until the completion

of the high wagon bridge, July 4, 1892.

In 1886, the Chicago, Burlington and Northern Railroad esteblished
connections between its main lines on the Wisconsin side of the river and
its Minnesota tracks by operating a winter bridge and its own ferry. This
ferry carried trains from the spur on the Wisconsin side to the Minnesota
trecks and was located near the present Burlington bridge.

SOURCES OF MATERIAL

Winona Daily Herald = July 2, 1892.

History of Winona County V. 1 end 2 - Wedge & Whipple - H. C. Cooper Jre.
& Coe. Chicago, Pub., 1913,

Official Records = Office of City Recorder = City Bldg.

Consultent = E, E, Chadwick, City Engineer, City Bldg. (on bridges).
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HISTORY OF WINONA COUNTY

High Wagon Bridge

A congressional bill passed Sept. 25, 1890, gave Winona the
right to build either a high wagon bridge or a drawbridge at its present

location. Contract was awarded Aug. 21, 1891, to the Chicago Bridge

and Iron Co., total cost being $94,700, including fence and railing.

Horace E, Horton was designer,

The original bridge was constructed as follows: On the Minne-
sota side is a stone-walled earth approach, 140 feet in length and an iron
trestle 515 feet to the first span, with a four percent grade; & 200 foot
anchor span on the Minnesota side, built of iron and steel and rising 46
feet above plers; a duplicate anchor span on the Wisconsin side, 10 feet
longer, A cantilever span in the center, length 360 feet. The highest
points of the bridge are at each end of this span, 118 feet above low water
marke The original approach on the Wisconsin side was a wooden structure,

700 feet connecting with the old ferry bridge. The entire bridge is supported
by 5 stone piers built of native limestone rock, Caissons were used in build=-
ing the piers in the river, water being pumped out with suction pumps,

The bridge was formally opened July 4, 1892, and operated as a toll
bridge until Dec. 1, 1923, when the toll was removed,

The wooden approach on the Wisconsin side, together with the old
ferry bridge and macademized ferry road built by the city in 1887, were re-
placed in 1915 by a modern concrete structure and road, Contract was let to
O'Hagen and Lake, Chicago, March 8, and a bonding company completed the

project.
RM




HISTORY OF WINONA COUNTY

Chicago and North=Western Railrcad Bridge

The Chicago and North-Western Railway Co., chartered on March
4, 1854, completed a bridge across the Mississippi river at Winona Dec.
29, 1870, four days being occupied in the construction. This connected
the Winona and St. Peter line with the LaCrosse, Trempealeau and Prescott
on the Wisconsin side of the river, This in turn connected at Winona
Junction with the Chicago, Milwaukee & St, Paul, thus esteblishing through
railroad communication between Winona and the East. May 26, 1871, the
bridge fell under the weight of a work train loaded with stone., & re=-

building was completed Jan, 16, 1872, The Winona and St. Paul having com-

pleted a bridge at Hastings, Dec. 11, 1871, through communication was thus

established between St, Paul and the East by way of Winona. At the time
the present bridge was built, the draw, 363 feet, was said to be the long=-

est in the world,




EARLY SETTLEMENT

The first permanent settlement in what is now Winona County was

made by Willard B. Bunnell, at the site of Homer village, on August 20,
1849, On September 29th of the same year, one Nathan Brown, a bachelor,
settled at the present site of Dakota village. Both men hailed from the
East. Bunnell, a typical Indian trader, had been living for a number of
years on the east side of the Mississi, in the vieinity of La Crosse, Trem-
pealeau, and Fountain City, where he hunted end trapped and traded with
the Indians. All this time his dream had been to establish a townsite on
the west bank of the rivere. Eventually he secured a government trader's
license and also obtained Wabasha's consent to trade with the Sioux Indians.
In the summer of 1849 he had a house built on the bank of the river in
what is now Homer village and in the fall he moved there from La Crosse
with his wife and three children.

Nathan Brown, also e trader, when still a young man, was determined
to seek his fortunes in the weste By hard labor and persistent effort
he menaged to accumulate some $8,000. He first went to Prairie du Chien,
"isconsin, where he worked for a time. Later he consented to a partnership
with others who induced him to settle in what is now Winona County with a
view to establish a townsite. He was not a government licensed trader but
he made friends readily with the Indians and, because of his honesty and
Justice, he held their confidence. He had made as sort of treaty with Wabasha

and his band, and purchased from them the privilege of occupying as much

of the locality as he chose, to carry on his business. He built two sub=-




stantial log buildings, one for his dwelling, the other for a store. His
home was always open to travelerse.
At the close of 1849 there were no other settlers living within

the present limits of Winona County, with the exception of Jeremiah Tibbetts,

another trader, who took charge of the trading post established by Peleau

about three-quarters of a mile south of Brown's place. This post was a=
bandoned in 1851. In the summer of 1850 a Frenchman named Richmond established
a wood yard at what later became the village of Richmond.

In 1851 the families of Augustus Pentler and Peter Gorr, all from
Illinois, located on the islaﬁds opposite Bumnell's place. Pentler and
Gorr were wood-choppers and worked for Bumnell. At the beginning of the
following year they moved to the mainland, Gorr settled near his employer
and the Pentlers went to live with new settlers further up-stream.

Captain Orrin Smith was the founder of the city of Winona. Living
at Galena, Illinois, he captained his boat “"Nominee" plying between Galena
and St. Paul. October 15, 1851, he brought with him three men whom he
landed at Wabasha prairie, the present site of Winona city. They were to
stake claims and build their cabins thereon. By December four others had
come. More wood choppers came and settled near Bunnell's place. Later that
winter Israel M. Moracong and William G. MeSpadden came up from La Crosse
with two yoke of oxen and supplies and settled at the mouth of Rollingstone
valley on the present site of Minnesota City. They were engaged in cutting
black walnut logs, this timber growing plentifully along the stream there.

At the close of 1851 there were twenty-four actual residents, either
in what is now Winona County or on the islands adjoininge All the adult
male residents, with the exception of Bumnell and Brown, were engaged in
the same occupation==cutting timber on public lands. At that time, people
were permitted to appropriate the timber on United States lands for individual

use and for purposes of speculation. The choicest pine, oak, black walnut,




ash and maple timber were cut and rafted down the Mississippi to be sold.
Some fifty percent of the timber on the islands in the Mississippi were
cut for steamboat wood and other purposes, while the title to lands was
still with the Indians or the United States government.

Aside from these men who actually lived here, there were wood

choppers who came and went during the winter of 1851-52. They boarded

at Bumnells. One John Farrell came up from La Crosse late in 1851 with

ox-teams, supplies and quite a number of men, and established a logging
camp on the Wisconsin side of the river. His cabin and stables were loc-
ated near where later a wagon road across the bottoms connected the Winona
Ferry with the mainland of Wisconsin. Some of the most valuable oak
timber on the islands opposite the city of Winona was cut down that winter
by Farrell's gang of wood chopperss In the spring the logs were formed
into huge rafts and floated down the river.

In April, 1852, at the present site of Minnesota City, was made
the first settlement of any magnitude on the west bank of the Mississippi
River. A colony of people from New York City and viecinity came under the
sponsorship of the Western Farm and Village Association. This organization,
composed of persons of different nationalities and business occupations,
was headed by William Haddock, a journeyman printer. It was purely an emi-
gration society, designed to aid its members in leaving the eity and form-
ing a colony on government lands in the West. They came well-supplied with
camp fixtures, household goods, wagons, plows and other tools, oxen, horses
and cattle. Incompetent and inexperienced in frontier life, with theoretical
rather than practical views, they shrunk from the hardships which every
pioneer must endure. Many sickened and died. Others left to find work
elsewhere and finally the association disbanded. New settlers coming in,
experienced,turned their attention to farming.

In June, 1852, Peter Gorr sold his holdings near Bumnell's place and
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made a claim in what is now Pleasant Valley. He was among the first in
the county to make farming a business. That year other claims were made
in this same vicinity and at the headwaters of Pine Creek in the southern
part of the present county. Farming was their chief interest. Still
others settled farther down the river in what is now Dresbach township.
Among them were a number of Scotch people who commenced farming in Cedar
Creek valley. DMore took claims in East and West Burns and Gilmore Valleys

and vicinity and also in the present township of Richmond. Most of these

people were ﬁative born Easterners, probably of English and Scotch descent,

a few Germans and Irish intermingled., The same year a colony of French
people arrived in Dresbach under the leadership of Joseph Menard and settled
at the present site of Dresbach village.

It was estimated that the population within the present boundaries
of Winona County on January lst, 1853, was about 350. Aside from the traders
and wood choppers, the majority of male residents were farmers, and they
were, with but few exceptions, poor men, few having more than barely enough
to get settled upon their lands. But they came, well-trained in agricultural
pursuits, with the ability and ambition to work hard to win success. A
few professional men, artisans and speculators had begun to drift in. Two
general mercantile stores were started, several hotels or inns had been
opened, there were many blacksmith shops, wagon repair shops and a few shoe
repair shops. Sawmills and grist mills began to appear in several localities
by 1854 and by 18566 the first flour mill in the county was in operation.

Of early pioneers not already discussed and who are identified with
Winona County as being more or less important during the period of early
settlement, mention might be made of those early traders who had a decided
influence in creating a friendship with the Wabasha Indianse. Such was
Francois du Chouquette, who came to what is now Winona County sometime be=-

tween 1830 and 1832 and settled at the present site of Homer. There he




established the first blacksmith shop in the vieinity with a view to serv-
ing the Wabashe band. He was of mixed Indian and French blood and readily
gained the friendship of the Indians of this locality, thereby becoming

very useful to the soldiers and early pioneers. Frencois La Bathe, another
half-breed, carried on extensive trading operations in Winona County for
some 15 yearss. By virtue of his relation to Wabasha and because of his tact
with the Indians, he had their friendship. He operated an extensive chain
of posts, four of which, including his principal post were located in Winona
County. These posts were a great aid to the early mail carriers who used
them as stopping places. James Reed, a Kentuckian, was a courier in the
Black Hawk War and in 1841 he received an appointment as Indian farmer and
government storehouse keeper to the Wabasha band. The building of his
storehouse at Winona is variously placed as from 1841 to 1844, When goods
began to arrive by steamer for the Indians of Wabasha prairie, Reed provided
temporary shelter for them. In 1838 the Rev. Jediah D. Stevens, a Presby-

terian minister, secured an appointment as Indian farmer to the Wabasha

bend from Major Lawrence Taliaferro. He was the first to bring the Pro-

testant faith to Winona County.

Among the permanent settlers who were prominent in the early com=
munity life of the county were such men as the Revy Edward Ely and the
Rev. Hiream S. Hemilton who conducted the first regular services (jointly)
as early as 1852; Jacob S. Demman who opened the first mercantile store;
Abner S. Coddard who established the first lodging house, called a "shanty
hotel™; Dr. John L. Balcombe who did much important work in exploring this
part of the Sioux cession. Byron A. Vigts built the famous "Viets Tavern"
later known as the old "Winona House." Henry D. Huff established the well-
known "Huff House" in 1853, on the site of the present Winona Hotel. Other
prominent settlers were William Ashley Jones, publisher of the first news=-

paper, the "Winona Argus"and his associate, Capt. Sam Whiting; M. Wheeler
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Sargeant, prominent attorney; David Olmsted, Dr. George F. Childs, Henry
Ce Gere, George M. Gere, George W. Clark, Jothurns, Erwin H. Jonson, Caleb
Nesh, Edwin Hamilton, William H. Stevens, Allen Gilmore, Jabez McDermott.

Winona County has been the home of many prominent people. It has
furnished the state with three attorney generals, The first of these was
Charles Henry Berry, who was the first attorney general of Mimmesota. To
him the stete Normal schools owe their existence. The second attorney
general was George P. Wilson who was a prominent factor in the legislation
of some of Minnesota's most important laws. The third was George T. Simp-
son, native born, and educated in Winona schools.

William Windom, Secretary of the Treasury under James A. Garfield

and again under Benjamin Harrison, was Winona's most distinguished resi=-

dent. His 1ife story is a part of the nation's history. William Hall Yale.

another resident of Winona, was lieutenant governor of Minmesota from 1870
to 1874, William Mitchell was judge of the Minnesota Supreme Court for 26
years, dJames A, Tawney, as congressmen for 18 years, served in such bodies
as the committee on appropriations and the intermational joint commissione

Among educators there was W. F. Phelps, whose name became a synonym
for normal educator; Mark H. Dunnell, who became State Supt. of Publie
Instruction and later represented this, the first Congressional District
in Congress for 12 years; and Charles Anson Morey who is remembered for
his executive and administrative abilities in regard to public education.

Henry Wilson Lemberton, attorney, was active in the development of
railroads in this section.

In commercial activities there was Royal D. Cone, founder of one
of the oldest hardware establishments in the Northwest; Hannibal Choate,
kmown as the "merchant prince" of southern Minnesota; John Latsch, who was
instrumental in the foundation of an extensive park system throughout this

territory; and J. R. Watkins, founder of Watkins Medical Co., known through-




out the world.

Pioneers in the great lumbering industry were John C., Matthew J.
and Williem H. Laird; L. C. Porter, Andrew Hamilton, Charles Horton, James
L. and Matthew G. Norton; Earl S. and Addison B. Youmans and Abner Fe
Hodginse.

In the field of medicine the pioneers knew the services of such
men as Dr. Jemes Munroe Cole, the first permanent practicing physician in
Winone County; Drs. James Brown McGaughey, Absalom Boyles Stuart, Franklin
Staples and D. A. Stuart. All but A. B. Stuart lived here until their
deaths.

Among the notable writers who have made Winona their home, was
hilliém,J. Whipple, Nationally kmown newspaper editor, Dr. Vm. J. Youmans,
who became editor of "Popular Seience Monthly; Mrs. lary Clemer Ames, a
noted author, and Rev. Edward Eggleston, author of "Hoosier Schoolmaster"
and "Eggleston's New Century History of the N. S." Dr. L. H. Bunnell, author
of "The History of Winona County and Environs" and "The Discovery of the
Yosemite", was one of the early pioneers of Winona County and lived here

until his death. Dr. Bunnell had a long record as an army surgeon through

the Mexican and Civil Wars. While a member of the Mariposa batallion and

on duty, he became one of the discoverers of the Yosemite valley, which he
named, and about whieh he wrote in his book. After the Civil war Dr. Bunnell
returned to Minnesota and settled at Homer, where his brother, Willard B.
Bunnell had established the first permanent settlement in the county, Sept.
29, 1849, Dr. Bumnell practiced medicine here for many years. He con=
stantly contributed historical articles to the papers and magazines.

*Correction == The name of this book is "Winona and Its Environs on the
Mississippil."




WINONA COUNTY--Industries - Horticulture.

Fruit growing in Winona county had its beginning
with the early members of the colony which settled at Minne-
sota City in 1852. The first attempt to set out fruit trees
was made by one John Shaw, a member of the colony. Mr. Shaw
brought apple seeds with him from Exeter, Maine, and on the
plece of land assigned to him and which he prepared by hand
with a spade, he planted his seeds. This wag the first
attempt at any horticultural work in southern Minnesota, and
perhaps in the whole state. Mr. Shaw only lived long enough
to see his tiny seeds come up. He made a request that the
little trees be divided among the members of the association
and a committee was appointed to carry out his request. These
trees were set out on the various farms and lots of early

settlers in and near Minnesota City. Soon orchards appeared in
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Industries - Horticulture.

other localities--Stockton, Gilmore Valley, Winona and in Homer
township. Plckwick, Dresbach and St. Charles had early settlers
who started fruit orchards. The first trees of any kind to

be planted on Wabasha prairie were apple trees, and they were
planted on what is now the Lamberton estate. John Burns, who
had come with the Minnesota City colony, did the planting.
Later, hls property was acquired by H. D. Buff who transplanted
these trees and cared for them.

An early nursery that supplied trees, plants and
shrubs for all the farms in Winona county, was located near
Sugar Loaf. In the sixties and seventies S. Bates and Son
had a large nursery at Stockton and their trade territory ex-

tended throughout southern Minnesota and into parts of Wisconsin

and Iowa. The nursery was discontinued in 1875 because of the

killing of the trees by the hard winteras of that period. This
checked the development of orchards for a time but later fruit
ralsing became important again and large quantities of apples
and a number of varieties of berries were shipped to this
localitye.

About 1910 the Yahnke nursery near Sugar Loaf carried
on an extensive business 1in nursery stock of fruits and plantse.
They had the largest and best fruit farm in the county at that
time. The business was discontinued when the senior member
of the firm died. The Briarwood fruit farm in Homer township
was well known also and produced large quantities of berries

and apples of the better varieties for market.
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O. M. Lord, a plum expert, at Minnesota City carried
on for several years some recognized work in his trial orchards
of the "Wild" or "Americana" types and cultivated crosses of
the native plums of Minnesota. His work was commenced by the
best authors on horticulture in the United States. After Mr.
Lord's death the orchards were neglected and soon disappeared.

Saratoga townshilp, in the southwest corner of the
eounty, was outstanding in its work on fruit orchards. One
Iuke Blair and his son, C. L. Blair, started in the spring
of 1855 with an orchard of the hardy, New England apples, in-
cluding the Greennings, Rarly Harvest and several russet
varieties. Four different varieties of pears, some cherries

and some cultivated plums were also set out. Some of these

trees began bearing in 1862. About 1868, C. L. Blair set out

a thousand trees, including the Duchess, Oldenberg and Ben

Davis varieties. The winter of 1872 was extremely severe and

mice and rabbits also became troublesonme. By 1880, Mr. Blair

began shipping apples to the north and west. In 1896 he set

out another orchard of a thousand trees of the Peerless variety.
The first nursery in this part of the county was the

McHenry nursery, which was started shortly after the Civil War.
Quantities of strawberries, raspberries, blackberries,

currants, and grapes to a limited extent, were raised in various

parts of the county. Those grown for market were brought mostly

from Minnesota City, Winona, Sugar Loaf, Homer, Dresbach, Pick-

wick, Stockton, Lewiston and St. Charles. Nearly all garuens
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had some berries, currants, gooseberries and rhubarb.

In Dresbach township, in the vicinity of Dakota
village, a great many berries were raised. Several thousand
crates of berries were shipped from Dakota village every season.
Stockton in Hillsdale township also shipped much fruit.

Fruit raised in Winona county, at the present time,
is sold in locgl markets only and for home consumption. There
are no specially outstanding fruit orchards now but most all
farms have some orchard space. Many kinds of apples are raised.
The most lmportant are the Letofsky, Duchess, Wealthy, Sunset,
several kindsof Russets, North Western Greenning, Wolf River,
Transcendent, Hislop, Strawberry, Minnesota and Whitney. The
last five named being crabs. Plums are cultivated to a con-
siderable extent, as are certain grapes. The wild plums and
grapes that were so plentiful in early days, are slowly disappear=-
ing.

Berrles are still important, especially strawberries

and raspberries. Lewiston, Stockton, Dakota and Winona pro-
duce large quantities of berries for shipment. Pfeiffers!,
a local nursery, has developed a large trade with the Wayzata
Strawberry, an everbearing variety, which is most successful
in this area. Other favorite strawberries are the Dunlap and
the Gibson.

The only nursery now existing in Winona county is

the Pfeiffer Nursery, located on the outskirts of the city

of Winona. This nursery had its beginning in 1910, on a
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nine-acre space located on the Minnesota bity road. Today
it covers an area of over a hundred acres of rich valley land
exclusively devoted to the growing and propagating of roots,

bulbs and plants for retall and wholesale trades.

In the beginning, Pfeiffers! gave their entire attention

to the growing of berry bushes and fruit trees. Over a period
of thirty years, due to severe winters and resultant killing

of frult plants, there was a gradual decline of horticultural
activities in the county. The nursery then turned to the
growing of perennials, shrqbs and landscape trees. The loca=-
tion of the nursery is especiﬁlly favorable for this work, as
the soil of the Mississlippl valley is such a combination of
soills that plants grown here do well in practically all soils.
They grow fast and are unusually hardy, since the winter seasons
are severe and the growing season short.

Pfeiffer Nursery has won considerable recognition
in its prize-winning peonies and iris, which have taken first
place in State Flower Shows for a number of years. Their
flower bulbs are shipped to all parts of the world, to Cuba
and the Phillippines, South America, Europe and to far-away
Australia.

Within the past few years there has been a revival
of interest in berry-raising. Pfeiffer has had much success
with the Wayzata strawberry, which seems to do especlally
well in this part of the Mississippi valley. At present, the

nursery is experimenting with a new black raspberry which
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promises to be of a better quality than those heretofore pro-
duced.
A Winona county Frult Growers' and Gardeners! Associa-

tion was organized in 1905 but was disbanded about 1920.
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STATISTICS ON ORCHARDS, VINEYARDS, DTHER FRUIT (Jan.l)_1935)

Land in frult orchards, vineyards, planted nut trees:
(1935) farms reporting 642
Acres 627
(1930) farms reporting 614
Acres 516

Frults and Grapes:
Apples (1935) farms reporting 1,369
trees not of bearing age, number 3,822
of bearing age, number 28,033
(1934) quantity harvested, bushels 29,385
Cherries (1935) farms reporting 115
trees not of bearing age, number 43
of bearing age, number 380
(1934) quantity harvested, bushels 15
Peaches (1935) farms reporting
trees not of bearing age, number
of bearing age, number
(1934) quantity harvested, bushels
Pears (1935) farms reporting
trees not of bearing age, number
of bearing age, number
(1934)quantity harvested, bushels
Plums and Prunes (1935) farms reporting 606
trees not of bearing age, number 240
of bearing age, number 5,899
(1934) quantity harvested, bushels 1,342

Grapes (1935) farms reporting 61
Vines not of bearing age, number 30
of bearing age, number 1,895
(1934) quantity harvested, pounds 12,883
Strawberries (1934) farms reporting
acres
quarts




Topic: History of Winona County

Industries - Lime Manufacturing

The first 1lime kiln in Winona County, of which there is
any record, was opened at Dresbock by Joseph Maynard, the found-
er of the Fraench Colony which settled at that site in 1852. Not
80 many years later some of the most important quarries in the
County were being operated in Dresbach township.

The burning of quicklime gradually became an important in-

dustry thruout Winona County, especially at the city of Winona,

where Porter and O'Dae carried on an extensive business., This
company had a large lime kiln at Sugar Loaf and wholesaled their
product. The lime burned at Winona, and generally thruout the
County, had the superior qualities that dolomitic limestones im-
part., It was slow to slack and set, evolved less heat and was
belleved to be more enduring when suitably handled in the mortar
than lime derived from pure limestone,

Lime was burned in other parts of the County; at Elba and
south of 8t. Charles at the Morcy lime kiln. The Ready quarry at
Dresbach had a lime kiln, also the Girtler quarry in East Burns
valley. The latter opened in 1885.

Today there is nothing left of this industry. Crushed lime,
however, 1s produced by the Blesanz Stone Company and is used as
& land fertilizer. Blesanz are the largest producers here but
lime is obtained from other quarries. The Ruppricht quarry at
Gilmore Valley, the Ries quarry in Straight Valley in Norton
township, the Buch guarry at Enterprise, Witoka Hill quarry, the

Gerry quarry at Saratoga, La Crescent Hill quarry in Dresbach town-




ship and the Frank Bilesanz quarry in Gilmore Valley are all

operated by CCC units for lime fertilizer.




Topic: History of Winona County

Industries - Brick Manufactur;gé

Throughout Winona County the clays of the loess-loam make
a superior red brick. The principal manufacturers of clay pro-
ducts In earliler years were located at Dresbach and Winona.
Very early Dresbach village was noted for its brick yards. Clay
for brick making was found in abundance all over the township of
Dresbach. As early as 1881, the firm of Sherwood and Johnson
made 3,000 brick per day. The next year they produced two mil-
lion brick, sold them &t six dollars per thousand, loaded on
cars, or shipped by river. Coming from New York, this firm es-
tablished two brick yards, used steam machinery for molding and
employed some 40 men. This business grew to the extent that be-
tween three and four million brick were shipped annually.

Williams and Schmidtz of Red Wing established a brick yard

at Dresbach 1n 1882 and shipped a million brick a year., The price

was $6 per thousand. The North Western Brick Co., organized under

the firm name of Moss & Dresbach, made hand-mold brick at $6 per
thousand, loaded on cars, They menufactured a million brick ann-
ually.

The brick yards at Dresbach were in active and flourishing
condition throughout the eighties. They furnished a fine quality
of red brick, some of them being a superior pressed brick, equal
in texture and fineness to those from St. Louis, but not yet their
equal in the mechanical execution of the molding and handling,
The loam used was free from limestone and from concretions, It
lay directly on the sandstone of the St. Croix, but had in its
upper portions layers of debris, which had to be rejected. All




Industries - Brick Manufacturing, Winona County

brick manufacturing in this locality has now been discontinued.
At Winona, the Groff brick yards, later known as the Wino-
na Brick Yards, were located just south of the city and were es-
tablished in 1884. This company produced from six to seven hun-
dred thousand of a superior grade of sand mould red face brick
per year. These sold at eight dollars per thousand. The loam of

the upper slope of the bluff in the vicinity was used. Blesanz

Stone Co., west of Winona in the beginning produced thirteen hun-

dred thousand of the sand mould-red brick per year. The price
was eight dollars per thousand. Fourteen men were employed here
and fivé teams were in use. The loam in the vicinity, having no
1imy concretions, was used. Thls company was headed by Philip
Biesanz . It 1s now known as the Biesanz Brick Yards.

At present, the two firms at Winona are the only clay pro-
ducts manufacturers in the county.Bilesanz Brick Yards 1s still
operating in the same locality and produces about a million brick
during a season. The old Winona Brick Yards, now known as Voel-
ker & Groff, are still operating at the old location., This firm
is equipped with all modern improvements and appliances. The
drying sheds here have a capacity of 274,000 brick and the kiln
holds from 220,000 to 500,000 brick. The output of this plant,
in 1915, was 3,000,000 brilck per season and thirty men were em-
ployed. At the present time the output 1is 1,000,000 brick per

season. The price of brick is now thirteen dollars per thousand.




Early Water-power Mills in Winona County

Beaver Creek, Whitewater - Becker Mill; 3-run of stone (one
for feed); 30 horse power; capaclty 50 bbl. per day.

Whitewater River, Elba - Elba Mills; 2 wheel; 3-run of stone
(one for feed); 60 horse power; capacity 100 bbl. per
day. More water here than could be used.

Whitewater River - North Branch - Elba - Fairwater mills;
2=-run of stone (one for feed); capacity 40 bbl, per
day.

Whitewater River - South Branch, St. Charles - Lamberton
mill; 2-run of stone (one for feed); capacity 40 bbl.
per day. (little water here).

Rollingstone Creek - South Branch, Stockton - Mowbry mill,
both steam and water; capacity 175 bbl. per day. Known
as "Stockton Mills",

Warren townshlp, Masquito mills - 2-run of stone; turbine wheel
with thirty-five feet fall, can run but one buhr at once;
capacity 25 bushels per day.

Rollingstone Creek - South Branch, Hillsdale Mills; 36 inch Lef-
fel wheel; 4-run of stone (one for feed); capaclty60 - 75
bbls. per day.

Rollingstone Creek - Minnesota City - Ellsworth mills; 56 inch
Leffel wheel; five sets of Stephen's rollers; 6 buhrs;
150 bbls, per day.

Rollingstone Creek - Minnesota City - Winona County mills; Hous-

ton turbine wheel; 100 horsepower; 28 sets allis rollers

(23 sets are double); capacity 350 bbls, per day; (steam




also). Rollingstone Creek - West Branch, Rollingstone Valley
mills - 35 inch Case turbine wheel; custom; 25 horse
power; 3-run stone.

Rollingstone Creek - West Branch, Norton - Ruprecht custom

mill; 13 horse power; 3 single rollers and one buhr,

Pleasant Valley Creek - Wilson - Laird custom mill; Flenekin's

20 inch turbine wheel; 560 cubic feet water per minute;
14 horse power; 3-run of stone, all for wheat.

Big Trout Creek - Pickwick - Pickwick mills; 20 inch Flenekin
turbine wheel; 37 horse power; 4-run of stone; two sets
single rollers; capacity 70 bbls. per day, shipped to La-
moille.

Big Trout Creek - Richmond - Hatch feed mill; 14 feet fall.

Pine Creek - New Hartford - Blumentritt custom mill;1l2 horse
power; 3-run of stone; (one for feed) turbine wheel (also
steam).

Creek - Wiscoy - Overbeck mill - 2 large buhrs (one for
feed); 36 inch American turbine wheel; capacity 45 bbls.
per day, shipped to Rushford.

Money Creek = Wiscoy - Clark custom mill, small; 2 buhrs (one
for feed ); 36 inch turbine wheel (LaCrosse & Craig).

Trout Run - Saratoga - Troy custom mill; 7% feet water head;

17 feet dam; 1 breast-wheel, 1 buhr; 15 horse power;
capacity unknown.

Rush Creek - Hart-mill owned by Winona individual; had been
abandoned six years, Dam was carried away by high water,
mill gradually torn down.

Rush Creek - Hart - Lehnertz custom mill; 24 horse powsr; 2-




run of stone (one for feed) Mulligan wheel of Lansing, Iowa;
25 bbls, per day; market in Winona.

Pine Creek - Fremont - Miles custom mill; 8% ft, fall; 12
horse power; 'counter-pressure! turbine wheel; 2 smooth
buhrs (one for feed); capacity 10 bbls, per day.

Trout Run - Troy - Troy mills; custom and merchant; 18 ft, fall:
1 Whitmore, 1 Houston wheel; 32 horse power; 3 buhrs (one
for feed); capacity 50 bbls, per day.

Trout Creek - Saratoga - Hampton mills; 14 ft. head; 80 horse

power; 2 turbine wheels; 4 buhrs (one for feed); capacity

50 bbls. per day.




TOPIC: History of Winona County
SUBMITTED BY: Carolyn Dyer

INDUSTRIES - FLOUR MILLING

The manufacture of flour in Winona County was begun
with the erection of the Fogg mill at the extreme end of the
town plat of Winona, in 1856, Nothing can be learned of this
mill except that it was not a success., The Glen Flouring
mill at Sugar Loaf, south of the city was started the same
year, This mill continued to operate until 1915 when it was
destroyed by fire. The Pickwick mill at Pickwick Falls on
Big Trout Creek and a small mill in Wiscoy township were erect-
ed in 1856 also, These four were the earliest mills in the
countye.

Soon many mills were being built in various parts of
the county, there being abundant water power on the numerous
streams, The mills were mostly small but were generally fitted
for the most approved methods of manufacture. Some were large
enough to export flour in packs or barrels. With some of the
small mills a large spring was the principal source of water
supply, these springs usually being due to small subterranean
"streams.,

In 1857 a large mill was built in Winona by H. D,

Huff, owner of "Huff House," a well=known hotelry of the

early days. The mill was erected at a cost of {25,000 and

was destroyed by fire within a few years, No other mill was

erected in Winona city until 1874 when the mill firm of Porter
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and Mowbray was organized.

Of the early flour mills in the county, the largest
were the Elba mills, at Elba on the Whitewater River; the
Stockton mills at Stockton on the south branch of the Rollingstone;
the Ellsworth mills at Minnesota City on Rollingstone Creek
and the Winona County mills at Minnesota City on Rollingstone
Creek. The latter was the largest in the county with an out-
put of 350 barrels of flour per day. This mill and the Stockton
mills had steam power also. The Winona County mills were fitted
with a Houston turbine wheel of 100 h.p., twenty-eight sets
of Allis rollers, all but five of which were double.. The
Stockton mills had an output of 175 barrels per day. The Elba
mills fitted with two wheels, produced 100 barrels per day.
The Ellsworth mills, fitted with Leffel wheel, five sets of
Stephens rollers, six buhrs, had an output of 150 barrels per
daye.

Some twenty smaller mills were located at various points,
mostly on the Whitewater and Rollingstone and their various

branches. Pleasant Valley Creek, Big Trout Creek, Pine Creek,

Money Creek, Rush Creek and Trout Run also had small mills.

Their capacity varied from 12 to 70 barrels per day. They ran
from one to four buhrs. The smallest mill in the county was
located in Warren township, in what is now Farmers! Community
Park. It ground 24 bushels of wheat per day and was called
Mosquite mill.

A rather famous mill was the Pickwick mill, on Big
Trout Creek, at Pickwick Falls., It boasted of a six-story,

stone structure, had a Flinekin turbine wheel, four run of
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stone, two sets of single rollers, 37 h.p., and turned out
up to 100 barrels of flour per day. Much flour from here

was taken to La Moille, thence shipped by river.

Most of the mills ran one buhr for feed grinding. 1In

many instances, after a mill ceased to manufacture flour, it
would continue to operate as a feed mill. Records show that
the first feed mill in the county was built at Minnesota City
in 1853 by Allen & Gilbert. It was a Burr horsepower mill.

In the late fifties, one sorghum mill existed, located
on Beaver Creek in Whitewater township.

Most of the mills scattered throughout the county have
long been discontinued, chlefly because of failing water power,
Some of them were destroyed by fire and were never re-buillt,

It is interesting to note that the o0ld Troy mill at Troy in
Saratoga township, erected in 1857 and constructed of the native
stone in that vicinity, has recently been selected by the arch-
itects of the Historic American Buildings survey as an outstand-
ing example of early American architecture. This mill, of
course, 1s not in use.

Among the several mills which are still operating in
the county, perhaps the largest is the one which was built on
the site of the old Mowbray mill, on the south branch of Rolling-
stone Creek in the village of Stockton. This mill, owned by
Mademan Bros,, is known as the Stockton Roller Mills and manu=-
factures all types of flour. One mill in the village of Rolling-
stone grinds feed only. The o0ld Blumentritt mill built on
Pine Creek in New Hartford township in 1860 still operates,

grinding flour for the farmers of the vicinity. The plcturesque
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0old stone mill above Pickwick Falls, at the village of Pick-

wick, 1s really a landmark in the county. It still produces
flour and feed for the farmers of the vicinity who bring
their wheat to be ground. This is now the oldest mill in the
county.

Today most of the flour used by Winona County residents

comes from the Bay State Mill at Winona,
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MILLING COMPANY

The Bay State Milling Company, which took over the
L. C. Porter Milling Co. in 1899, 1s one of Winona's largest
and most far-reaching industries. Its real beginning was
back in 1874, when the mill firm of Porter & Mowbray was organ-
ized and a five-story frame structure was erected and provided
with nine run of stone for erushing the wheat. Rollers were
then unknown. This mill had a capacity of 250 barrels of flour
per day. The engine and boiler house was a two-story brick
building and three years later an elevator was built with a
capacity of 50,000 bushels. This was increased in 1882 to 90,000
bushels storage and a handling capacity of 5,000 bushels.

By this time the mill was producing per day 500 barrels
of flour. Rollers had been introduced but burrs (stones) were
used also. The reduction was done on rollers, the pulverizing
of the middlings on burrs. An interesting sidelight on the
0ld mill reveals that sawdust was used exclusively for fuel, and
the 0ld mill was the first in the state employing steam ex-
clusively for power, such power before being considered too
costly for profitable employment.

This mill was totally destroyed by fire but a new
one was erected, with a greater capacity. It operated under
the firm name of L. C, Porter Milling Co. until 1889 when it
failed. The mill stood idle for ten years and in 1899, The
predent Bay State Milling Company came into possession of the
properties by purchase.

The new firm began operations March 21, 1899, with a
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1,200 barrel daily output. The mill was enlarged and improved
from time to time, to meet the constantly inereasing demands
of its customers, not only in the United States, but in many foreign
lands. In a dozen years the Bay State Milling Company was re-
garded as among the foremost milling concerns in the country,

On July 28, 1911, the mill was again destroyed by
fire. A large warehouse was also burned and "Elevator "B" was
threatened but was paved. In all, 16,000 barrels of flour

and 175,000 bushels of wheat were destroyed and the total

loss was placed at $600,000, The local morning paper carried

the headline "The Plant of Winona's Most Substantial Industry
Reduced to Junk."

The company was the pride of commercial Winona as
it is today. At that time the daily capacity of the plant
was approximately 3,600 barrels of wheat flour and 400 barrels
of rye and corn products. It required the annual erop of
500,000 acres to furnish the company with wheat and its product
was beling carried into homes throughout the United States.

It was then that the city of Winona had an uneasy
time of it. While the company was debating its rebuilding
program, 1t was receiving flattering inducements from other
cities to re-establish elsewhere. But it decided in favor
of Winona and on August 10 a contract was let and building
began soon afterward. Shipments interrupted, were resumed
from a temporary mill at Minneapolis.

Establishing a time record in building construction,
the new mill resumed operations March 4, 1912, It is one

of the most modern and complete flour mills ever erected.




Industries = Bay State Milling Company = Winona County

It embodies the latest ideas of the world's foremost mill-
ing engineers and includes many original features not to

be found in any other mill, Everything is designed to pro-
mote the greatest efficiency In the making of the highest
and most uniform grade of flour, economy of production and
convenience of operation.

Winona is proud of its mill, It is an eight-story
structure with a daily capacity of 4,500 barrels of wheat
flour and 500 barrels of rye flour. Bullt of reinforced con-
crete, brick and tile, it is thoroughly fire-proof. Every-
thing has been done to insure sanitation, both in the interest
of the workman and the product. Fresh air and sunlight pene-
trate all space.

The pride and show place of the plant is the 4th or
grinding floor. On a white, blue-bordered tile floor, sur-
rounded by walls covered with white glazed tile, are fifty-
six double stands of nickle-trimmed grinding rolls. The room
is kept spick and span 24 hours of the day.

Stress is placed on cleanliness. Flour dust is eli-

minated by automatic dust collectors advantageously placed to

prevent the fine powder from escaping through the spouts on
its way from one to the other of the 400 odd machines 1n the
plant, Everything is automoatie, that is, from the time the
raw material enters the mill warehouse until it is packed as
finished flour, it is touched by no human hand. It passes
through enclosed machines which protect it from outside im=-
purities,

The mill is electriecally operated and requires between
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60 to 70 motors. The main and largest drive motor generates
900 horsepower, The endless rope drive on this motor which
operates the wheat mill, uses almost a mile of heavy manilla
rope, while the belting used in driving the hundreds of
machines, if placed end to end, would cover a distance of
more than five miles. A 350 horsepower motor runs the wheat=-
cleaning department.

Only the choicest of hard spring wheat 1s used in
the manufacture of flour at the Bay State mill., Experts
are employed to survey the hard wheat fields of Minnesota, the
Dakotas and Montana and observe the character and quality of
the wheat obtainable. In this way the company known where
to secure the special quality of wheat necessary for the stand-
ard of its products,

Every car of wheat received at the mill, before it
is unloaded, is laboratory tested to determine protein and
moisture content. A miniature mill is employed to grind the
samples of wheat into flour and this flour is used in baking,
to determine its standard,

It takes about 18,000 bushels of wheat daily to keep
the mill running. There are two large elevators with a com-

bined capacity of 750,000 bushels of wheat., A large concrete

elevator, known as Elevator "A", has a capacity of 500,000

bushels, Elevator "B", which survived the fire of 1911, has

a 250,000 bushel capacity. ©cometimes as many as a hundred
cars of wheat are on track at one time, waiting unloading inte
the elevators,

The mill is operated day and night, except Sundays,
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with a force of about 100 people working eight=hour shifts.
An assembly room, kitchen and dining room are provided for
employees and surrounding grounds offer recreation. The
organization has never had any labor troubles and among its
mill and office employees are people who have been with
the firm since 1ts beginning.,

Direct telegraph wires connect the Bay State Milling
Company with the principal wheat terminals of the northwest,
and with the trading floor of the Minneapolis Chamber of
Commerce, in which the local firm holds memberships. Thirty
road representatives are employed. There are thirteen branch

managers located at Milwaukee, Chicago, Cleveland, Detroit,

Cedar Rapids - Iowa, Pittsburg, Buffalo, Richmond - Virginia,

Boston, Haverhill - Mass., Lowell - Mass., Lawrence - Mass.,
and Manchester - New Hampshire.

Today the superior standard of "Wingold" and "Bay
State" flour is known far and wide. Little by little,
foreign trade has been increased and now the name of this
¢ity is carried on flour and feed bags into many countries.
1n addition to the domestic trade, shipments are made to
Cuba, Sweden, Turkey, Italy, Denmark, Finland, France, the
jsland of Malta, Greece, Gibralter, Algiers, Ireland, Scot-

land, Germany and Holland.




	00695a_CIF
	82591
	82592
	82593
	82595
	82596
	82597
	82598
	82599
	82600
	82601
	82602
	82603
	82604
	82605
	82606
	82607
	82608
	82609
	82610
	82611
	82612
	82613
	82614
	82615
	82616
	82617
	82618
	82619
	82620
	82623
	82624
	82625
	82626
	82627
	82628
	82629
	82630
	82631
	82632
	82633
	82634
	82635
	82636
	82637
	82638
	82639
	82640
	82641
	82642
	82643
	82644
	82645
	82646
	82647
	82648
	82649
	82650
	82651
	82652
	82653
	82654
	82655
	82656
	82658
	82659
	82660
	82661
	82662
	82663
	82664
	82665
	82666
	82667
	82668
	82669
	82671
	82672
	82673
	82676
	82677
	82678
	82679
	82680
	82681
	82682
	82683
	82684
	82685
	82686
	82687
	82688
	82689
	82690
	82691
	82692
	82693
	82694
	82695
	82696
	82697
	82698
	82699
	82700
	82701
	82702
	82703
	82704
	82705
	82706
	82707
	82708
	82711
	82712
	82713
	82714
	82715
	82716
	82717
	82718
	82719
	82720
	82721
	82722
	82723
	82724
	82725
	82726
	82727
	82728
	82729
	82730
	82731
	82732
	82733



